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AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

2009 2008
Revenues
  Rental property revenues $ 25,772 $ 25,406
  Community development-land sales 6,992 6,457
  Homebuilding-home sales 246 3,476
  Management and other fees, substantially all
from related entities 219 208
  Reimbursement of expenses related to managed
entities 177 1,106
    Total revenues 33,406 36,653

Expenses
  Rental property operating expenses 11,454 11,497
  Cost of land sales 5,196 5,218
  Cost of home sales 217 2,694
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 7,304 7,380
  Depreciation 3,829 3,855
  Expenses reimbursed from managed entities 177 1,106
    Total expenses 28,177 31,750

Operating Income       5,229 4,903

Other income (expense)
  Interest and other income 262 497
  Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities 302 489
  Interest expense (8,120) (7,460)

Loss before benefit for income taxes (2,327) (1,571)
Benefit for income taxes (1,604) (1,037)

Loss from continuing operations (723) (534)
Income from discontinued operations
     (less applicable income taxes of $797 and $44,
respectively) 1,338 224
 Gain on sale of discontinued operations (less
applicable income taxes of $10,453) 25,351 -
Total discontinued operations 26,689 224

Consolidated net income (loss) 25,966 (310)
  Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling
interest 704 1,691
 Net income (loss) attributable to ACPT $ 25,262  $ (2,001)
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Income (loss) per common share – Basic and
Diluted
  Loss from continuing operations $ (0.13) $ (0.11)
  Discontinued operations 5.02 0.05
  Income attributable to noncontrolling interest (0.13) (0.32)
  Income (loss) applicable to common
shareholders $ 4.76 $ (0.38)

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
  Basic and diluted 5,312 5,215
Cash dividends per common share $ - $ -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

2009 2008
Revenues
  Rental property revenues $ 8,600 $ 8,526
  Community development-land sales 3,462 460
  Homebuilding-home sales 246 494
  Management and other fees, substantially all
from related entities 109 68
  Reimbursement of expenses related to managed
entities (366 ) 344
    Total revenues 12,051 9,892

Expenses
  Rental property operating expenses 3,981 3,779
  Cost of land sales 2,552 493
  Cost of home sales 197 394
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 2,964 2,309
  Depreciation 1,249 1,132
  Expenses reimbursed from managed entities (366 ) 344
    Total expenses 10,577 8,451

Operating Income 1,474 1,441

Other income (expense)
  Interest and other income 56 136
  Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities 96 159
  Interest expense (2,614 ) (2,465 )

Loss before benefit for income taxes (988 ) (729 )
Benefit for income taxes (574 ) (762 )

(Loss) income from continuing operations (414 ) 33
Loss from discontinued operations
(less applicable income taxes of $178 and ($370),
respectively) (950 ) (293 )
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (less
applicable income taxes of $10,453) 25,351 -
Total discontinued operations 24,401 (293 )

Consolidated net income (loss) 23,987 (260 )
  Less: Net (loss) income attributable to
noncontrolling interest (588 ) 370
Net income (loss) attributable to ACPT 24,575 (630 )
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Earnings (loss)  per share –Basic and Diluted
  Loss from continuing operations $ (0.07 ) $ -
  Discontinued operations 4.59 (0.05 )
  (Loss) income attributable to noncontrolling
interest 0.11 (0.07 )
  Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders $ 4.63 $ (0.12 )

Weighted average shares outstanding:
  Basic and diluted 5,312 5,222
Cash dividends per share $ - $ -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
As of

September 30,
2009

As of
December 31,

 2008
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
ASSETS:
Investments in real estate, at cost:
  Operating real estate, net of accumulated
depreciation
   of $83,007 and $79,379, respectively $ 80,506 $ 82,918
  Land and development costs 98,357 96,266
  Condominiums under construction 1,606 1,745
  Rental projects under construction or development 24,075 4,564
    Investments in real estate, net 204,544 185,493

Property and related assets held for sale 36,961 93,628

Cash and cash equivalents 21,507 24,035
Restricted cash and escrow deposits 10,127 9,500
Investments in unconsolidated real estate entities 6,363 5,121
Receivable from bond proceeds 2,525 2,052
Accounts receivable, net 1,183 992
Deferred tax assets 28,208 28,540
Property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation 630 898
Deferred charges and other assets, net of
amortization of
  $3,823 and $2,764, respectively 7,071 4,934
    Total Assets $ 319,119 $ 355,193

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Non-recourse debt $ 180,148 $ 168,221
Recourse debt 37,596 39,416
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 20,795 19,553
Deferred income 1,561 200
Deferred tax liability 2,296
Accrued current income tax liability 18,301 14,754
Liabilities related to assets held for sale 31,304 111,812
    Total Liabilities 292,001 353,956

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES  (NOTE 5)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
  ACPT’s shareholders equity:
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    Common shares, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares
authorized,
     5,622,660 and 5,229,954 shares issued and
outstanding
      as of September 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008 56 52
    Treasury stock, 67,709 shares at cost (376) (376)
    Additional paid-in capital 19,224 18,144
    Retained earnings (deficit) 8,783 (16,479) 
        Total ACPT shareholders’ equity 27,687 1,341
  Noncontrolling interests (569) (104)
    Total  Shareholders’ Equity 27,118 1,237
    Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 319,119 $ 355,193
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands, except share amounts)

ACPT Shareholders’ Equity
Common Shares Additional Non- Total

Par Treasury Paid-in Retained Controlling Shareholders’
Number Value Stock Capital Deficit Interest Equity

Balance
December 31,
2008 5,229,954 $ 52 $ (376) $ 18,144 $ (16,479) $ (104) $ 1,237
Net income
attributable to
ACPT - - - - 25,262 - 25,262
Net income
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests - - - - - 5,150 5,150
Dividends paid to
noncontrolling
interests - - - - - (5,615) (5,615)
Issuance of
common shares 392,706 4 - (4) - - -
Equity
Compensation - - - 1,084 - - 1,084
Balance
September 30,
2009 (unaudited) 5,622,660 $ 56 $ (376) $ 19,224 $ 8,783 $ (569) $ 27,118
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

2009 2008 
 Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Consolidated net income (loss) $ 25,966 $ (310)
   Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net income (loss) to net cash provided
    by (used in) operating activities:
      Depreciation 3,829 7,511
      Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes 679 (703)
      Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities (174) (489)
      Distribution of earnings from unconsolidated entities 476 490
      Cost of land sales 5,196 5,251
      Cost of home sales 217 2,694
      Write-down of assets 882 -
      Stock based compensation expense 1,117 91
      Amortization of deferred loan costs 699 633
      Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes (23,285) -
      Changes in accounts receivable (281) 717
      Additions to land and development costs (10,917) (19,992)
      Additions to condominiums under construction (78) (151)
      Change in deferred income 1,361 (197)
      Change in deferred charges and other assets  (36) (248)
      Changes in accounts payable, accrued liabilities (3,231) (2,265)
  Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,420 (6,968)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Investment in rental projects under construction or development (11,411) (2,866)
  Change in investments - unconsolidated entities (1,544) 51
  Net deposits to restricted cash (554) (191) 
  Additions to operating real estate, net (2,844) (2,561)
  Proceeds received upon sale of discontinued operations 7,864 -
  Net purchase of other assets (3,565) (91)
  Net cash used in investing activities (12,054) (5,658)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
  Cash proceeds from debt financing 20,019 6,386
  Payment of debt (7,541) (2,888)
  County Bonds proceeds, net of undisbursed funds 243 5,106
  Payments of distributions to noncontrolling interests (5,615) (1,587)
  Net cash provided by financing activities 7,106 7,017
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,528) (5,609)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 24,035 24,912
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period $ 21,507 $ 19,303

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION

American Community Properties Trust (“ACPT”) is a self-managed holding company that is primarily engaged in the
business of investing in and managing multifamily rental properties as well as community development and
homebuilding.  ACPT’s operations are primarily concentrated in the Washington, D.C. metropolitan area and Puerto
Rico and are carried out through its U.S. subsidiaries, American Rental Properties Trust (“ARPT”), American Rental
Management Company ("ARMC "), American Land Development, Inc. ("ALD") and their subsidiaries and its Puerto
Rican subsidiary, IGP Group Corp. ("IGP Group").

ACPT is taxed as a U.S. partnership and its income flows through to its shareholders.  ACPT is subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes on IGP Group’s taxable income, generating foreign tax credits that have been passed through to ACPT’s
shareholders.  A federal tax regulation has been proposed that could eliminate ACPT’s ability to pass through these
foreign tax credits to its shareholders.  Comments on the proposed regulation are currently being evaluated, and the
final regulation will be effective for tax years beginning after the final regulation is ultimately published in the Federal
Register.  ACPT’s income consists of (i) certain passive income from IGP Group, (ii) additional distributions from IGP
Group including Puerto Rico taxes paid on behalf of ACPT and (iii) dividends from ACPT’s U.S. subsidiaries.  Other
than Interstate Commercial Properties (“ICP”), which is a subsidiary of IGP Group and is taxed as a Puerto Rico
corporation, the income from the remaining Puerto Rico operating entities passes through to IGP Group or ALD.  Of
this income, only the portion attributable to the profits, losses or gains on the residential land sold in our Parque
Escorial property passes through to ALD.  ALD, ARMC, and ARPT are taxed as U.S. corporations. 

 (2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of American Community Properties Trust
and its majority owned subsidiaries and partnerships, after eliminating all intercompany transactions.  All of the
entities included in the consolidated financial statements are hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Company" or
"ACPT."

The Company consolidates entities that are not variable interest entities, as defined by Financial Accounting Standard
Board Accounting Standards Codification (“FASB ASC”) Topic 810, “Consolidation” (FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)),
in which it owns, directly or indirectly, a majority voting interest in the entity.  In addition, the Company consolidates
entities, regardless of ownership percentage, in which the Company serves as the general partner and the limited
partners do not have substantive kick-out rights or substantive participation rights in accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 810, “Control of Partnership and Similar Entities” (Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 04-05)  The assets of
consolidated real estate partnerships not 100% owned by the Company are generally not available to pay creditors of
the Company.

The consolidated group includes ACPT and its four major subsidiaries, ARPT, ARMC, ALD, and IGP Group.  In
addition, the consolidated group includes the following other entities:
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American Housing Management
Company

LDA Group, LLC

American Housing Properties L.P. Milford Station I, LLC
Bannister Associates Limited Partnership Milford Station II, LLC
Coachman's Apartments, LLC New Forest Apartments, LLC
Crossland Associates Limited Partnership Nottingham South, LLC
Escorial Office Building I, Inc. Owings Chase, LLC
Essex Apartments Associates Limited
Partnership

Palmer Apartments Associates Limited
Partnership

Fox Chase Apartments, LLC Prescott Square, LLC
Gleneagles Apartments, LLC St. Charles Community, LLC
Headen House Associates Limited
Partnership

Sheffield Greens Apartments, LLC

Huntington Associates Limited
Partnership

Torres del Escorial, Inc.

Interstate Commercial Properties, Inc. Village Lake Apartments, LLC
IGP Property Holdings, LLC Wakefield Terrace Associates Limited

Partnership
Lancaster Apartments Limited Partnership Wakefield Third Age Associates Limited

Partnership
Land Development Associates S.E.

The Company’s investments in entities that it does not control are recorded using the equity method of
accounting.  Refer to Note 3 for further discussion regarding Investments in Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities.

Interim Financial Reporting

These unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States ("GAAP") for interim financial information and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial
statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted. The Company has no items of other
comprehensive income for any of the periods presented. In the opinion of management, these unaudited financial
statements reflect all adjustments (which are of a normal recurring nature) necessary to present a fair statement of
results for the interim period. While management believes that the disclosures presented are adequate to make the
information not misleading, these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and
the notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report filed on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2008.  The operating results for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year. Net income (loss) per share is calculated based on
weighted average shares outstanding.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements, and accompanying notes and disclosures.
These estimates and assumptions are prepared using management's best judgment after considering past and current
events and economic conditions. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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Sales, Profit Recognition and Cost Capitalization

In accordance with FASB ASC 360, “Real Estate Sales”, and 976, “Real Estate – Retail Land”, (Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,”) community development land sales and
multifamily rental property sales are recognized at closing only when sufficient down payments have been obtained,
possession and other attributes of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, and ACPT has no significant
continuing involvement.  Under the provisions of FASB ASC 360, related to condominium sales, revenues and costs
are to be recognized when construction is beyond the preliminary stage, the buyer is committed to the extent of being
unable to require a refund except for non-delivery of the unit, sufficient units in the project have been sold to ensure
that the property will not be converted to rental property, the sales proceeds are collectible and the aggregate sales
proceeds and the total cost of the project can be reasonably estimated.  Accordingly we recognize revenues and costs
upon settlement with the homebuyer which does not occur until after we receive use and occupancy permits for the
building.

- 9 -
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     The costs of developing the land are allocated to our land assets and charged to cost of sales as the related
inventories are sold using the relative sales value method which rely on estimated costs and sales values.   In
accordance with FASB ASC 970,”Real Estate Project Costs” (SFAS No. 67 "Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental
Operations of Real Estate Projects"), the costs of acquiring and developing land are allocated to these assets and
charged to cost of sales as the related inventories are sold. Within our homebuilding operations, the costs of acquiring
the land and construction of the condominiums are allocated to these assets and charged to cost of sales as the
condominiums are sold.  The cost of sales is determined by the percentage of completion method.  The Company
considers interest expense on all debt available for capitalization to the extent of average qualifying assets for the
period.  Interest specific to the construction of qualifying assets, represented primarily by our recourse debt, is first
considered for capitalization.  To the extent qualifying assets exceed debt specifically identified, a weighted average
rate including all other debt is applied.  Any excess interest is reflected as interest expense.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Adjustments to Assets Held for Sale

ACPT carries its rental properties, homebuilding inventory, land and development costs at the lower of cost or fair
value in accordance with FASB ASC 360, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS No. 144,
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.")  For real estate assets such as our rental
properties which the Company plans to hold and use, which includes property to be developed in the future, property
currently under development and real estate projects that are completed or substantially complete, we evaluate
whether the carrying amount of each of these assets will be recovered from their undiscounted future cash flows
arising from their use and eventual disposition.  If the carrying value were to be greater than the undiscounted future
cash flows, we would recognize an impairment charge to the extent the carrying amount is not recoverable.  Our
estimates of the undiscounted operating cash flows expected to be generated by each asset are performed on an
individual project basis and based on a number of assumptions that are subject to economic and market uncertainties,
including, among others, demand for apartment units, competition, changes in market rental rates, and costs to operate
and complete each project.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and
are not depreciated or amortized while classified as held for sale. Fair value of assets held for sale is based on
estimated future cash flows, which includes expected proceeds to be received. ACPT recognizes a loss for any initial
or subsequent write-down to fair value less costs to sell and recognizes a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value
less costs to sell, up to the cumulative loss previously recognized. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009,
ACPT recognized a loss on write-down to fair value less cost to sell of $882,000 related to the revaluation of the
Baltimore properties.   This impairment is included in income from discontinued operations on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.  The Company has binding agreements for two of the five properties (Milford I and II)
subject to loan assumption and continues to market Nottingham, Owings Chase and Prescott Square.  As a result, the
Company revised its estimated sales values determined though discussions with our broker, which represent Level 3
inputs under the fair value hierarchy in FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements”), and an asset write-down was required to further reduce the carrying values of the Baltimore
properties to their estimated fair market value less costs to sell.

The Company evaluates, on an individual project basis, whether the carrying value of its substantially completed real
estate projects, such as our homebuilding inventory that are to be sold, will be recovered based on the fair value less
cost to sell.  If the carrying value were to be greater than the fair value less costs to sell, we would recognize a charge
to the extent the carrying amount is not recoverable.  Our estimates of the fair value less costs to sell are based on a
number of assumptions that are subject to economic and market uncertainties, including, among others, comparable
sales, demand for commercial and residential lots and competition.  The Company performed similar reviews for land
held for future development and sale considering such factors as the cash flows associated with future development
expenditures.  Should this evaluation indicate that an impairment has occurred, the Company will record an
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impairment charge equal to the excess of the historical cost over fair value less costs to sell.  There were no
impairment charges for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted deposits with financial institutions and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Restricted cash and escrow deposits include funds held in
restricted escrow accounts used for maintenance and capital improvements with the approval of the U.S.
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Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) and/or the State Finance Agency.  The account also includes
tenant security deposits as well as deposits collected within our homebuilding operations as well as funds in an escrow
account that are restricted for the repayment of the Charles County bonds.

As of September 30, 2009, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $21,507,000 and restricted cash of
$10,127,000.  Included in the Company’s cash and cash equivalents is $3,908,000 of cash located within multifamily
apartment entities, over which the Company does not have direct control.  Cash flow from our consolidated apartment
properties whose mortgage loans are insured by the Federal Housing Authority ("FHA"), or financed through the
housing agencies in Maryland, Virginia or Puerto Rico (the "Financing Agencies,") are subject to guidelines and limits
established by the apartment partnerships' regulatory agreements with HUD and the State Financing Agencies.

Depreciable Assets and Depreciation

The Company's operating real estate is stated at cost and includes all costs related to acquisitions, development and
construction.  The Company makes assessments of the useful lives of our real estate assets for purposes of
determining the amount of depreciation expense to reflect on our income statement on an annual basis. The
assessments, all of which are judgmental determinations, are as follows:

·  Buildings and improvements are depreciated over five to forty years using the straight-line or double declining
balance methods;
·  Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over five to seven years using the straight-line method;
·  Leasehold improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the lesser of the life of the lease or their estimated
useful life; and
·  Maintenance and other repair costs are charged to operations as incurred.

Operating Real Estate

The table below presents the major classes of depreciable assets as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (in
thousands):

September
30, 2009

December
31, 2008

(Unaudited)
Building $ 131,192 $ 135,067
Building improvements 10,020 8,313
Equipment 9,892 6,912

151,104 150,292
Less: Accumulated depreciation 83,007 79,379

68,097 70,913
Land 12,409 12,005
Operating properties, net $ 80,506 $ 82,918

Other Property and Equipment

In addition, the Company owned other property and equipment of $630,000 and $920,000, net of accumulated
depreciation of $2,001,000 and $2,553,000, respectively, as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively.  The balance at December 31, 2008 includes $22,000 which has been reallocated to property and related
assets held for sale.
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Depreciation

Total depreciation expense was $3,829,000 and $7,511,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, $3,656,000 has been reclassified as discontinued
operations. Total depreciation expense was $1,249,000 and $2,469,000 for the three months ended
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September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  For the three months ended September 30, 2008, $1,337,000 has been
reclassified as discontinued operations.

Impact of Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2009, the FASB made the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“Codification”) (FASB ASC 105 / SFAS
No. 168) the single source of authoritative literature for U.S. accounting and reporting standards. The Codification is
not meant to change existing GAAP but rather provide a single source for all literature. FASB ASC was effective for
the interim period ending September 30, 2009, and required us to change certain disclosures in our financial
statements to reflect Codification references rather than references to FASB Statements, Staff Positions or Emerging
Issues Task Force Abstracts. The adoption of FASB ASC did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB ASC 820, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. FASB ASC 820 applies to
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, except for share-based payments under
FASB ASC 718, “Stock Compensation”( SFAS No. 123(R)). We adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of
FASB ASC 820 for financial assets and financial liabilities and for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that
are re-measured at least annually effective January 1, 2008; the adoption did not have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Effective January 1, 2009, we adopted the provisions for all
other nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities which did not have a material impact on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB ASC 810, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements,
an amendment of ARB No. 51" ("SFAS 160") which replaces the concept of minority interest with noncontrolling
interests in subsidiaries.  Noncontrolling interests are now reported as a component of equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position.  Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests will continue to be reported as a part
of consolidated earnings; however, FASB ASC requires that income attributable to both controlling and
noncontrolling interests be presented separately on the face of the consolidated income statement.  In addition, FASB
ASC provides that when losses attributable to noncontrolling interests exceed the noncontrolling interest’s basis, losses
continue to be attributed to the noncontrolling interest as opposed to being absorbed by the consolidating entity.  It
requires retroactive adoption of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests. All other
requirements of FASB ASC 810 shall be applied prospectively.   The Company adopted FASB ASC 810 on
January 1, 2009.  The effect of adoption was a reclassification of Minority Interest, historically shown in liabilities, to
a new line item, Noncontrolling Interests, included in shareholders’ equity, and the reclassification of Minority Interest
from Retained Deficit as it represented distributions and losses in excess of basis.  

The following table illustrates the pro forma amounts of loss from continuing operations, discontinued operations and
net income that would have been attributed to the Company’s shareholders for the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2009, prior to their amendment by FASB ASC 810 (in thousands, except per unit amounts):

Nine months Three Months
Loss from continuing operations $ (2,207 ) $ (1,211 )
Income from discontinued operations 26,689 26,600
Pro forma net income attributable to ACPT’s shareholders $ 24,482 $ 25,389

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share
Loss from continuing operations $ (0.41 ) $ (0.23 )
Income from discontinued operations 5.02 5.01
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Pro forma net income attributable to ACPT’s shareholders $ 4.61 $ 4.78

The FASB issued FASB ASC 805, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141R”).  This statement changes the accounting for
acquisitions specifically eliminating the step acquisition model, changing the recognition of contingent consideration
from being recognized when it is probable to being recognized at the time of acquisition, disallowing the
capitalization of transaction costs and delays when restructurings related to acquisitions can be recognized.  The
Company adopted these changes on January 1, 2009, and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s results
from operations.

- 12 -
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In December 2008, the FASB issued FASB ASC 860, “Disclosures by Public Entities (Enterprises) about Transfers of
Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities” (FSP No. FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8). This requires
public entities to provide additional disclosures about transfers of financial assets and requires public enterprises,
including sponsors that have a variable interest in a variable interest entity, to provide additional disclosures about
their involvement with variable interest entities. See Note 3 for the required disclosures.

In April 2009, the FASB updated FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (“FSP FAS 157-4”) which
provides additional guidance for determining the fair value of assets and liabilities when the volume and level of
activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. The update also provides guidance on identifying
circumstances that indicate an observed transaction used to determine fair value is not orderly and, therefore, is not
indicative of fair value.  The Company adopted these updates effective April 1, 2009.  There was not a material impact
on its results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

In April 2009, the FASB also updated FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, (FSP FAS 107-1
and APB 28-1) to expand the fair value disclosure requirements to include interim periods and require these
disclosures in summarized financial information in interim reporting periods. The Company adopted these updates
effective April 1, 2009.  In August 2009, ASC No. 2009-05 was issued amending Subtopic 820-10, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, to provide clarity and guidance on the fair value measurement of liabilities.

The balance sheet carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and other current assets approximate
fair value due to the short-term nature of these items and represents Level 1 under the fair value hierarchy in FASB
ASC 820.

The fair value of our non-recourse and recourse debt is sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates.  As of September 30,
2009, the book value of long-term fixed rate debt was $242,231,000, and the fair value of total debt was
$260,426,000.  As of December 31, 2008, the book value of long-term fixed rate debt was $294,721,000, and the fair
value of total debt was $343,076,000.  Fair value was determined by discounting future cash flows using borrowing
rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and maturities.  This represents Level 3 under the
fair value hierarchy FASB ASC 820.

In May 2009, the FASB updated FASB ASC 855, “Subsequent Events” (SFAS No. 165) to establish general standards
of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are
issued or available to be issued.  This statement details the period after the balance sheet date during which
management shall evaluate events or transactions, the circumstances under which an entity shall recognize events or
transactions in its financial statements, and the disclosures that an entity shall make about events and transactions that
occurred after the balance sheet date.  We adopted these updates effective April 1, 2009.  See Note 13 for required
disclosures.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)” (“SFAS No. 167”),
which provides certain changes to the evaluation of a variable interest entity (“VIE”) including requiring a qualitative
rather than quantitative analysis to determine the primary beneficiary of a VIE, continuous assessments of whether an
enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE, and enhanced disclosures about an enterprise’s involvement with a VIE.
The statement is effective January 1, 2010, and is applicable to all entities in which an enterprise has a variable
interest. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS No. 167 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

- 13 -

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST - Form 10-Q

24



Table of Contents

 (3) INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED REAL ESTATE ENTITIES

The Company accounts for investments in unconsolidated real estate entities that are not considered VIEs under
FASB ASC 810 (FIN 46R) in accordance with FASB ASC 970, (SOP 78-9) and FASB ASC 323 (APB Opinion No.
18).  Under this guidance, an entity would be required to consolidate a VIE if it has (i) the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance, and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses of
the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could be significant to the VIE.  For the entities that are
considered VIEs, the Company performs an assessment to determine the primary beneficiary of the entity based on a
probability weighted cash flow analysis.  The Company accounts for VIEs in which the Company is not a primary
beneficiary and does not bear a majority of the risk of expected loss in accordance with the equity method of
accounting.

Apartment Partnerships

The unconsolidated apartment partnerships as of September 30, 2009 and 2008 included Brookside Gardens Limited
Partnership (“Brookside”) and Lakeside Apartments Limited Partnership (“Lakeside”) that collectively represent 110
rental units.  We have determined that these two entities are VIEs.  However, the Company is not required to
consolidate the partnerships due to the fact that the Company is not the primary beneficiary and does not bear the
majority of the risk of expected losses.  The Company holds an economic interest in Brookside and Lakeside but, as a
general partner, we have significant influence over operations of these entities that is disproportionate to our economic
ownership.  In accordance with FASB ASC, these investments are accounted for under the equity method.  The
Company is exposed to losses consisting of our net investment, loans and unpaid fees for Brookside of $264,000 and
$246,000 and for Lakeside of $135,000 and $165,000 as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively.  All amounts are fully reserved and, accordingly, there is no carrying value associated with the
Company’s investments in these unconsolidated real estate entities for the periods presented.  Pursuant to the
partnership agreement for Brookside, the Company, as general partner, is responsible for providing operating deficit
loans to the partnership in the event that it is not able to generate sufficient cash flows from its operating
activities.  The Company’s involvement with Brookside and Lakeside has not had a material affect on the Company’s
financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Commercial Partnerships

The Company holds a limited partner interest in a commercial property in Puerto Rico that it accounts for under the
equity method of accounting.  ELI, S.E. ("ELI"), is a partnership formed for the purpose of constructing a building for
lease to the State Insurance Fund of the Government of Puerto Rico.  ACPT contributed the land in exchange for
$700,000 and a 27.82% ownership interest in the partnership's assets, equal to a 45.26% interest in cash flow
generated by the 30 year lease of the building.

Land Development/Homebuilding Joint Ventures

In October 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Surrey Homes, LLC (“Surrey Homes”) to contribute
$2,000,000, which was paid as of September 30, 2009, in exchange for a 50% ownership interest of the Series A Units
in Surrey Homes.  Surrey Homes’ business model is focused on providing affordable quality homes with the lowest
ongoing cost of maintenance through energy efficiency and other green initiatives.  Surrey Homes is establishing itself
as a low overhead, lot option home builder.

We have determined that our investment in Surrey Homes is a VIE under FASB ASC 810; however, we are not
required to consolidate Surrey Homes as the Company is not the primary beneficiary and does not bear the majority of
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the risk of expected losses.  In accordance with FASB ASC, this investment is accounted for under the equity method,
and as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, represented $1,778,000 and $489,000 of the Company’s
investments in unconsolidated real estate entities, respectively.  The Company is exposed to total losses consisting of
our cumulative initial investment of $2,000,000.  Other than funding the equity investment, the Company’s
involvement in Surrey Homes has not materially affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and
cash flows.
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The following table summarizes the financial data and principal activities of the unconsolidated real estate entities,
which the Company accounts for under the equity method.  The information is presented to segregate the apartment
partnerships from the commercial partnerships as well as our 50% ownership interest in the land development joint
venture and homebuilding operation, which are all accounted for as “investments in unconsolidated real estate entities”
on the balance sheet.

Apartment Commercial
Properties Property Homebuilding Total

(in thousands)
Summary of Financial Position
  Total Assets
    September 30, 2009 $ 4,688 $ 27,411 $ 4,035 $ 36,134
    December 31, 2008 4,781 27,005 2,478 34,264
  Total Non-Recourse Debt
    September 30, 2009 3,072 22,375 - 25,447
    December 31, 2008 3,123 22,380 - 25,503
  Total Other Liabilities
    September 30, 2009 984 382 17 1,383
    December 31, 2008 960 153 - 1,113
  Total Equity
    September 30, 2009 631 4,654 3,580 8,865
    December 31, 2008 698 4,472 2,478 7,648
  Company's Investment, net (1)
    September 30, 2009 - 4,584 1,778 6,362
    December 31, 2008 - 4,632 489 5,121

Summary of Operations
  Total Revenue
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 623 2,587 29 3,239
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 620 2,653 - 3,273
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 206 850 5 1,061
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 202 864 - 1,066
  Net Income (Loss)
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 (66) 1,301 (422) 813
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 (97) 1,339 - 1,242
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 (16) 425 (196) 213
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 (30) 430 - 400
  Company's recognition of equity in Earnings (Loss)
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 - 513 (211) 302
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 - 490 - 490
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 - 157 (98) 59
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 - 159 - 159

Summary of Cash Flows
  Cash flows from operating activities
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 130 1,595 (405) 1,320
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 61 1,627 42 1,730
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 24 646 (108) 562
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 11 650 40 701
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  Company's share of cash flows from operating activities
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 1 722 (202) 521
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 1 736 21 758
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 - 293 (103) 190
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 - 294 20 314
  Operating cash distributions
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 1,115 - 1,115
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 - 1,194 - 1,194
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 - 409  - 409
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 - 421 - 421
  Company's share of operating
  cash distributions
    Nine months ended September 30, 2009 524 - 524
    Nine months ended September 30, 2008 - 541 - 541
    Three months ended September 30, 2009 - 186 - 186
    Three months ended September 30, 2008 - 191 - 191

Notes:
(1)  Represents the Company's net investment, including assets and accrued

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet for unconsolidated real estate
entities.

 (4) DEBT

The Company's outstanding debt is collateralized primarily by land, land improvements, homebuilding assets,
receivables, investment properties, investments in partnerships, and rental properties.  The following table summarizes
the indebtedness of the Company at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Maturity Interest Outstanding as of
Dates Rates September 30, December 31,

From/To From/To 2009 2008
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Recourse Debt
  Community Development
(a)(b)(c)(d) 03-31-10/06-01-23 3.25%/8%    $         37,483 $           39,232
  General obligations (e) 02-21-12/03-13-12  Non-interest

bearing/8.55% 113 184
Total Recourse Debt 37,596 39,416

Non-Recourse Debt   (f)(g)(h)
  Investment Properties 12-01-13/07-01-50 4.95%/7.33% 180,148 168,221
  Held for Sale – Non-Recourse
Debt 11-01-14/05-01-16 5.3%/5.9% 29,889 107,899
Total Non-Recourse Debt 210,037 276,120
    Total Debt $       247,633 $         315,536

a.  As of September 30, 2009, $25,948,000 of the community development recourse debt is
owed to the Charles County Commissioners and relates to the general obligation bonds
issued by the Charles County government, that have 15 year amortization of maturities
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with the earliest occurring in June, 2019, as described in detail under the heading
"Financial Commitments" in Note 5.  As of September 30, 2009, the Company has a
receivable balance related to the bonds of $2,525,000.

b.  On April 14, 2006, the Company closed a three year, $14,000,000 revolving acquisition
and development loan (“the Revolver”) secured by a first lien deed of trust on property
located in St. Charles, Maryland.  During the first quarter of 2009, the Company
renegotiated the terms of the agreement.  The loan bears interest at Prime plus 1.25%
(4.5% at September 30, 2009) and matures on March 31, 2010.  As of September 30,
2009, $1,946,000 was outstanding on the Revolver.
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c.  Land Development Associates, S.E (“LDA”) had a $10,000,000 revolving line of credit
that matured on August 31, 2009 but was extended to December 31, 2010.  As part of
the extension, the Company agreed to reduce the overall facility limit to $7,500,000 with
the available credit to be used to fund remaining Hilltop development, certain retainage
due and  up to $500,000 to be used to fund future interest payments due under the
facility.  In addition, the facility now bears interest at Prime plus 1.5% but not less than
5.5%.  The outstanding balance of this facility on September 30, 2009, was $6,247,000.

d.  On April 2, 2008, the Company secured a two-year, $3,600,000 construction loan for the
construction of a commercial restaurant/office building within the O’Donnell Lake
Restaurant Park.  The facility is secured by the land along with any improvements
constructed and bears interest at Wall Street Journal published Prime Rate (3.25% at
September 30, 2009).  At the end of the two-year construction period, the Company may
convert the loan to a 5-year permanent loan, amortized over a 30-year period at a fixed
interest rate to be determined.  As of September 30, 2009, $3,342,000 was outstanding
under this facility leaving $258,000 available to fund completion of the
building.  However, the lender requested that the outstanding balance of the loan be
reduced to 80% of the “as-is” value of the building, requesting a reduction of $782,000
before November 20, 2009.

e.  The general recourse debt outstanding as of September 30, 2009 is made up of various
capital leases outstanding within our U.S. and Puerto Rico operations, as well as
installment loans for vehicles and other miscellaneous equipment.

f.  The non-recourse debt related to the investment properties is collateralized by the
multifamily rental properties and the office building in Parque Escorial.  As of
September 30, 2009, approximately $76,279,000 of this debt was secured by the Federal
Housing Administration ("FHA") or the Maryland Housing Fund.

g.  On May 12, 2008, IGP agreed to provide a fixed charge and debt service
guarantee related to the Escorial Office Building I, Inc. (“EOB”) mortgage.  The
fixed charge and debt service guarantee requires IGP Group to contribute capital
in cash in such amounts required to cause EOB to comply with the related
financial covenants.  The guarantee will remain in full force until EOB has
complied with the financial covenants for four consecutive quarters.

h.  On January 28, 2009, the Company completed the initial closing of a 6.9%, $25,045,000
non-recourse construction loan to fund the construction costs for a new apartment
property in St. Charles' Fairway Village (“Fairway Village”).  As of September 30, 2009,
the balance on the loan was $13,654,000. 

The Company’s loans contain various financial, cross collateral, cross default, technical and restrictive
provisions.  With the exception of a loan to value covenant related to the office building construction loan as noted in
footnote d. above, as of September 30, 2009, the Company is in compliance with its financial covenants.

 (5) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial Commitments

Pursuant to an agreement reached between ACPT and the Charles County Commissioners in 2002, the Company
agreed to accelerate the construction of two major roadway links to the Charles County (the "County") road system.
 As part of the agreement, the County agreed to issue general obligation public improvement bonds (the “Bonds”) to
finance $20,000,000 of this construction guaranteed by letters of credit provided by Lennar Corporation (“Lennar”) as
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part of a residential lot sales contract for 1,950 lots in Fairway Village.  The Bonds were issued in three installments
with the final $6,000,000 installment issued in March 2006.  The Bonds bear interest rates ranging from 4% to 8%, for
a blended lifetime rate for total Bonds issued to date of 5.1%, and call for semi-annual interest payments and annual
principal payments and mature in 15 years.  Under the terms of Bond repayment agreements between the Company
and the County, the Company is obligated to pay interest and principal to the County based on the full amount of the
Bonds; as such, the Company recorded the full amount of the debt and a receivable from the County representing the
remaining Bond proceeds to be advanced to the Company as major infrastructure development within the project
occurs.  As part of the agreement, the Company will pay the County a monthly payment equal to one-sixth of the
semi-annual interest payments and one-twelfth of the annual principal payment.  The County and the Lennar
agreement require ACPT to fund an escrow account from lot sales to be used to repay the principal portion of these
Bonds.

In August 2005, the Company signed a memorandum of understanding ("MOU") with the Charles County
Commissioners regarding a land donation that is now the site of a minor league baseball stadium and entertainment
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complex.  Under the terms of the MOU, the Company donated 42 acres of land in St. Charles to the County on
December 31, 2005.  The Company also agreed to expedite off-site utilities, storm-water management and road
construction improvements that will serve the entertainment complex and future portions of St. Charles so that the
improvements will be completed concurrently with the entertainment complex.  In return, the County agreed to issue
$12,000,000 of general obligation bonds to finance the infrastructure improvements.  In March 2006, $4,000,000 of
bonds were issued for this project, with an additional $3,000,000 issued in both March 2007 and March 2008 and
$2,000,000 in March 2009.  These bonds bear interest rates ranging from 4.9% to 8%, for a blended rate of 5.3%, call
for semi-annual interest payments and annual principal payments, and mature in 15 years.  The terms of the bond
repayment agreement are similar to those noted above.  In addition, the County agreed to issue an additional 100
school allocations a year to St. Charles commencing with the issuance of bonds.

During 2006, the Company reached an agreement with the County whereby the Company receives interest payments
on any undistributed bond proceeds held in escrow by the County.  The agreement covers the period from July 1, 2005
through the last draw made by the Company.

As of September 30, 2009, ACPT had purchased $11,904,000 of surety bonds for the completion of land development
projects with Charles County with maturity dates ranging from November 6, 2009 to November 8, 2010; substantially
all of which are for the benefit of the Charles County Commissioners.

Consulting Agreements and Severance Arrangements

ACPT entered into a consulting agreement with Carlos Rodriguez, the former Executive Vice President and Chief
Executive Officer for IGP Group, a wholly owned Puerto Rico subsidiary of ACPT, effective July 1, 2008.  Under the
terms of this consulting agreement, the Company will pay Mr. Rodriguez $100,000 per year through June
2010.  Payments under this consulting agreement were fully accrued as of December 31, 2008.

On October 1, 2008, Mr. Edwin L. Kelly notified the Company that he would retire as the Company’s President and
Chief Operating Officer effective December 1, 2008.  Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Kelly received a
severance payment of $1,500,000.  The Company has also agreed to enter into a consulting agreement with Mr. Kelly
providing compensation for his services at a rate of $10,000 per month, for an initial term of one year.  Payments
under this consulting agreement were fully accrued as of December 31, 2008.

Gleneagles Construction Contract

On January 28, 2009, the Company completed the initial closing of a 6.9%, $25,045,000 non-recourse construction
loan to fund the construction costs for a new apartment property in Fairway Village.  As of September 30, 2009, the
balance on the loan was $13,654,000.  The Company has entered into a construction contract valued at $18,291,000 to
complete the construction of this property.

Guarantees

ACPT and its subsidiaries typically provide guarantees for another subsidiary's loans. In many cases more than one
company guarantees the same debt. Since all of these companies are consolidated, the debt or other financial
commitment made by the subsidiaries to third parties and guaranteed by ACPT, is included within ACPT's
consolidated financial statements.  As of September 30, 2009, ACPT had guaranteed $37,483,000 of such debt.  The
guarantees will remain in effect until the debt service is fully repaid by the respective borrowing subsidiary.  The
terms of the debt service guarantees outstanding range from one to nine years.   We do not expect any of these
guarantees to impair the individual subsidiary or the Company's ability to conduct business or to pursue its future
development plans.
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Legal Matters

On September 25, 2009, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement and plan of merger whereby
FCP Fund I, L.P. (“FCP”) would acquire 100% of the outstanding common shares of the Company for a price of $7.75
per share, payable in cash, for aggregate consideration of approximately $43,600,000.  On October 2, 2009,
Pennsylvania Avenue Funds, a purported Company shareholder, filed a class action complaint in the Circuit
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Court for Charles County, Maryland, against the Company, the Board of Trustees and FCP.  The complaint alleges
that the trustees breached their fiduciary duties in connection with the merger.  The complaint further alleges that FCP
aided and abetted those breaches of fiduciary duty.  The complaint seeks to enjoin consummation of the merger and
also seeks attorneys’ fees and expenses.  On October 23, 2009, Joseph M. Sullivan, a purported Company shareholder,
filed a class action complaint in the Circuit Court for Charles County, Maryland, against the Company, the Board of
Trustees, FCP and FCP/ACPT Acquisition Company, Inc. (“FCP/ACPT Acquisition Company”). The complaint alleges
that the trustees breached their fiduciary duties in connection with the merger.  The complaint further alleges that FCP
and FCP/ACPT Acquisition Company aided and abetted those breaches of fiduciary duty.  The complaint seeks to
enjoin consummation of the merger and also seeks attorneys’ fees and expenses.

Due to the inherent uncertainties of the judicial process, we are unable to either predict the outcome of or estimate a
range of potential loss associated with certain matters discussed above.  While we intend to vigorously defend these
matters and believe we have meritorious defenses available to us, there can be no assurance that we will prevail.  If
these matters are not resolved in our favor, we believe we are insured for potential losses unless otherwise stated.  Any
amounts that exceed our insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results
of operations.

In addition, the Company and/or its subsidiaries have been named as defendants, along with other companies, in
tenant-related lawsuits.  The Company carries liability insurance against these types of claims that management
believes meets industry standards.  To date, payments made to the plaintiffs of the settled cases were covered by our
insurance policy.  The Company believes it has strong defenses to these ordinary course claims, and intends to
continue to defend itself vigorously in these matters.

In the normal course of business, ACPT is involved in various pending or unasserted claims. In the opinion of
management, these are not expected to have a material impact on the financial condition or future operations of
ACPT.

 (6) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain officers and trustees of ACPT have ownership interests in various entities that conduct business with the
Company.  The financial impact of the related party transactions on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements is reflected below (in thousands):
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 CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF INCOME:

Nine months Ended
September 30,

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Management and Other Fees
  Unconsolidated subsidiaries
with third party partners    (A) $ 31 $ 32 $ 10 $ 11

Rental Property Revenues    (B) $ - $ 36 $ - $ 6

Interest and Other Income
  Unconsolidated real estate
entities with third party partners $ 7 $ 6 $ 2 $ 2

General and Administrative
Expense
  Reserve additions (reductions)
and other write-offs-
    Unconsolidated real estate
entities with third party partners    (A) $ 5 $ (2 ) $ (3 ) $ 7
    Reimbursement to IBC for
ACPT's share of J. Michael
Wilson's salary 318 311 106 104
  Reimbursement of
administrative costs-
    Affiliates of J. Michael
Wilson, Chairman (11 ) (14 ) (3 ) (4 )
  Consulting Fees-
    James J. Wilson, IGC
Chairman and Director   (C1) -- 150 -- 50
    Thomas J. Shafer, Trustee   (C2) 5 45 -- 15

$ 317 $ 490 $ 100 $ 172

BALANCE SHEET:

Balance 
September
30,  2009

Balance
December
31, 2008

Other Assets
Receivables – All unsecured and due on demand
  Unconsolidated subsidiaries $3 $10
  Affiliate of J. Michael Wilson, Chairman 3 2
Total $6 $12

Additional Paid-in Capital   (C3) $354 $95

(A)  Management and Other
Services

The Company provides management and other support services to its unconsolidated subsidiaries and other affiliated
entities in the normal course of business.  The fees earned from these services are typically collected on a monthly
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basis, one month in arrears.  Receivables are unsecured and due on demand.  Certain partnerships experiencing cash
shortfalls have not paid timely.  Generally, receivable balances of these partnerships are fully reserved, until satisfied
or the prospect of collectibility improves.  The collectability of management fee receivables is evaluated
quarterly.  Any increase or decrease in the reserves is reflected accordingly as additional bad debt expenses or
recovery of such expenses.

(B)  Rental Property Revenue
On September 1, 2006, the Company, through one of its Puerto Rican subsidiaries, Escorial Office Building I, Inc.
(“Landlord”), executed a lease with Caribe Waste Technologies, Inc. (“CWT”), a company owned by the J. Michael
Wilson Family.  The lease provides for 1,842 square feet of office space to be leased by CWT for five years at $19.00
per rentable square foot.  The Company provided CWT with an allowance of $9,000 in tenant improvements which
are being amortized over the life of the lease.  On February 25, 2008, CWT executed its rights under the lease and
provided six months written notice of its intention to terminate the lease, effective August 24,
- 20 -
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2008. The lease agreement is unconditionally guaranteed by Interstate Business Corporation (“IBC”), a company owned
by the J. Michael Wilson Family.

(C)  Other
Other transactions with related parties are as follows:
1)  Represents fees paid to James J. Wilson pursuant to a consulting and retirement

agreement.  At Mr. Wilson's request, payments are made to Interstate Waste
Technologies, Inc. (“IWT”).

2)  Represents fees paid to Thomas J. Shafer, a Trustee, pursuant to a consulting
agreement.

3)  A primary shareholder of the Company agreed in principle to provide the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer with the economic benefit of 185,550
shares of their common stock as of October 1, 2008 in accordance with
the five-year vesting schedule. According to FASB ASC 718, any
share-based payments awarded to an employee of the reporting entity by
a related party for services provided to the entity are share-based
payment transactions unless the transfer is clearly for a purpose other
than compensation for services to the reporting entity.  Therefore, in
essence, the economic interest holder makes a capital contribution to the
reporting entity, and the reporting entity makes a share-based payment to
its employee in exchange for services rendered.   The Company
recognized $354,000 and $95,000 in compensation expense in the nine
and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, related to this
grant.

(7) INCOME TAXES

ACPT’s subsidiaries, ARMC, ALD and ARPT, are subject to federal and state income tax.  ACPT is subject to Puerto
Rico income tax on its Puerto Rico source income.

The United States effective tax rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were 36% and 30%,
respectively.  The United States effective tax rates for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were
22% and 37%, respectively.  The statutory tax rate is 40%.  The difference in the statutory tax rate and the effective
tax rate for the pre-tax loss during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 was primarily due to accrued
taxes and penalties on uncertain tax positions, certain non-deductible compensation expenses and the change in the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance.  The difference in the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate for the pre-tax
loss during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2008 was primarily due to a relatively small net loss
reported, the related benefit for which was partially offset by accrued taxes and penalties on uncertain tax positions.

The effective tax rates on the Puerto Rico source income for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008
were 28% and (71%), respectively. The effective tax rates on the Puerto Rico source income for the three months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were 29% and 21%, respectively.  The statutory tax rate is 29%.   The difference
in the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate for the pre-tax income during the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2009, was primarily due to tax exempt income and the change in the deferred tax asset valuation
allowance offset in part by deferred items for which no current benefit may be recognized.  The difference in the
statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate for the pre-tax loss during the nine and three months ended September 30,
2008, was primarily due to tax exempt income offset in part by the double taxation on the earnings of our
wholly-owned corporate subsidiary, ICP, and deferred items for which no current benefit may be recognized. 
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     Due to the potential variability in the anticipated effective tax rate on non-discrete activity and/or discrete taxable
events, the company has computed its intraperiod income tax provision for the discrete taxable events and
non-discrete activity using a discrete period computation.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2009, was $13,920,000.  Included in the balance at
September 30, 2009, were $40,000 of tax positions that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate.  A
reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefit (in thousands) is as follows:

       Unrecognized tax benefit at December 31, 2008 $ 15,543
       Change attributable to tax positions taken during a prior period (1,600)
       Change attributable to tax positions taken during the current period -
       Decrease attributable to settlements with taxing authorities -
       Decrease attributable to lapse of statute of limitations (23)
       Unrecognized tax benefit at September 30, 2009 $ 13,920
- 21 -
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In accordance with our accounting policy, we present accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions as a
component of interest expense and accrued penalties as a component of income tax expense on the Consolidated
Statement of Income.  Our Consolidated Statements of Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
2008, included interest expense of $932,000 and $1,031,000, respectively, and penalties of ($41,000) and $58,000,
respectively.  Our Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
included interest expense of $287,000 and $298,000, respectively, and penalties of ($15,000) and $20,000,
respectively.  Our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, included accrued
interest of $5,148,000 and $3,844,000, respectively, and accrued penalties of $1,073,000 and $1,143,000, respectively.

The Company currently does not have any tax returns under audit by the United States Internal Revenue Service or the
Puerto Rico Treasury Department.  However, the tax returns filed in the Unites States for the years ended December
31, 2006 through 2008 remain subject to examination.  For Puerto Rico, the tax returns for the years ended December
31, 2005 through 2008 remain subject to examination.  Within the next twelve months, the Company does not
anticipate any payments related to settlement of any tax examinations.  There is a reasonable possibility within the
next twelve months the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by $608,000 when the related statutes of
limitations expire and certain payments are recognized as taxable income.

Additionally, as a result of holding our partnership interests in certain U.S. multifamily apartment properties over
many years there is approximately $45,000,000 of distributions in excess of our partnership basis, related to these
holdings.   Should a triggering event take place, such as sale or liquidation of the underlying partnership assets or
interests, the Company would be required to recognize taxable income related to this low basis and pay tax
accordingly.

 (8) HELD FOR SALE ASSETS

A real estate investment held for sale is carried at the lower of its carrying amount or estimated fair value, less the cost
of a potential sale.  Depreciation is suspended during the period the property is held for sale.  The Company has
binding agreements for two of the five properties (Milford I and II) subject to loan assumption and continues to
market Nottingham, Owings Chase and Prescott Square.  The Company intends to sell all five of these properties and
accordingly, believes that held for sale presentation is appropriate.

On August 31, 2009, the Company completed the sale of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Interstate General Properties,
LP (“IGP”) to Partners Business Equities, LLC (“PBE”) and its associates for $14,300,000 which was a significant portion
of the Company’s Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate segment.  Prior to the sale, IGP was restructured to include only
the Company’s general and limited partnership interests in nine partnerships which own twelve properties with 2,653
subsidized apartments in Puerto Rico, as well as the Section 8 affordable housing management contracts.  Included in
the sale was $39,805,000 in investments in real estate and $81,051,000 in non-recourse debt as of August 31,
2009.  The Company realized a net gain on the transaction of approximately $25,351,000 and deferred revenues of
$1,224,000.  $974,000 in notes receivable has been deferred until paid as the receivable is contingent on PBE
refinancing the apartment mortgages, and $250,000 has been deferred as it represents monies held in escrow to cover
warranties.  In accordance with FASB ASC 360 (SFAS 144), the Puerto Rican Properties’ assets and related liabilities
had been classified as “held for sale” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008.

As of September 30, 2009, the major classes of assets related to the Baltimore properties included in assets held for
sale are $34,674,000 in investments in real estate, $1,130,000 in restricted cash and escrow balances, and $1,149,000
in deferred charges and other assets.  Liabilities related to assets held for sale includes $29,889,000 in non-recourse
debt.
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In addition, the properties’ results of operations have been classified as “discontinued operations” for all periods
presented in the consolidated statements of operations.  The following is a summary of the components of income
from discontinued operations for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively:
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 2008
Revenues
  Rental property revenues $ 19,794 $ 21,267
  Management and other fees 273 360
    Total revenues 20,067 21,627

Expenses
  Rental property operating expenses 9,756 10,794
  General, administrative, selling, and marketing 1,153 1,590
  Write-down of assets 882 -
  Depreciation expense - 3,656
    Total expenses 11,791 16,040

Operating income 8,276 5,587

Other income (expense)
  Gain on sale of discontinued operations (less applicable
taxes of $10,453) 25,351 -
   Other expenses (4,914) (5,319)
   Total income (expense) 20,437 (5,319)

Income before provision for income taxes 28,713     268
Provision for income taxes 797 44
Income from discontinued operations   27,916 224
  Noncontrolling interest in consolidated entities       (1,227) (1,306) 
 Income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable
to ACPT $     26,689 $ (1,082) 

For the three months ended September 30, 2009 2008
Revenues
  Rental property revenues $ 5,388 $ 7,210
  Management and other fees 30 119
    Total revenues 5,418 7,329

Expenses
  Rental property operating expenses 2,812 3,595
  General, administrative, selling, and marketing 584 611
  Write-down of assets 43 -
  Depreciation expense - 1,337
    Total expenses 3,439 5,543

Operating Income 1,979 1,786

Other income (expense)
  Gain on sale of discontinued operations (less applicable income taxes of
     $10,453) 25,351 -
   Other expenses (1,524) (1,760)
   Total other income (expense) 23,827 (1,760)
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Income before provision for income taxes 25,806     26
Provision for income taxes 178 319
Income (loss) from discontinued operations   25,628 (293)
  Noncontrolling interest in consolidated entities (1,227) (370) 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to ACPT $    24,401 $ (663) 
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(9) SEGMENT INFORMATION

ACPT operates in two principal lines of business: Operating Real Estate and Land Development.  The Operating Real
Estate segment is comprised of ACPT’s investments in rental properties and property management services; whereas,
the Land Development segment is comprised of ACPT’s community development and homebuilding services.  This
represents a change from ACPT’s historical financial reporting practice of evaluating the company solely based on
geographical location.  During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company had a change in senior management.   The
chief operating decision maker emphasizes net operating income as a key measurement of segment profit or
loss.  Segment net operating income is generally defined as segment revenues less direct segment operating expenses. 
Management is now evaluating the Company based on its operating lines of business, Operating Real Estate and Land
Development.  While ACPT continues to report operating results on a consolidated basis, it also now reports
separately the operating results of its two lines of business.  The Company has reclassified its segment presentation for
2008 to include the results of these segments.  The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described
in the summary of significant accounting policies.

Operating Real Estate

The Operating Real Estate segments in the U.S. and Puerto Rico are comprised of investments in rental properties and
property management services.  The Operations are managed through ARPT, ARMC, and IGP, a wholly owned
subsidiary of IGP Group Corp., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of ACPT.  ARPT and its subsidiaries hold the
general and limited partnership interests in our U.S. Operating Real Estate apartment property portfolio.  The
apartment properties are individually organized into separate entities.  ARPT's ownership in these entities ranges from
0.1% to 100%.  The U.S. Operating Real Estate operations also include the management of apartment properties in
which we have an ownership interest and one apartment property owned by a third party in 2008.  The Company has
entered into binding purchase agreements for two of the five properties (Milford I and II) which are subject to certain
closing conditions and continues to market Nottingham, Owings Chase and Prescott Square.  The financial impact of
these properties has been included as “Held for Sale” and “Discontinued Operations” in the segment disclosures below.

For the nine months ended

U.S. Operating Real Estate:
September 30,

2009
September 30,

2008

Operating revenues $ 25,022 $ 25,107
Operating expenses 10,943 11,034
Net operating income 14,079 14,073
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 58 117
  General, administrative, selling and marketing (1,346) (1,063)
  Depreciation (3,534) (3,734)
Operating income 9,257 9,393
Other expense (6,452) (5,944)
Income before provision for income taxes   2,805 3,449
Provision for income taxes 131 366
Income from continuing operations 2,674 3,083
Discontinued operations (533) (357)
Net income $ 2,141 $ 2,726
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For the three months
ended

U.S. Operating Real Estate:
September
30, 2009

September
30, 2008

Operating revenues $ 8,295 $ 8,423
Operating expenses 3,795 3,612
Net operating income 4,500 4,811
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 10 38
  General, administrative, selling and marketing (487) (334)
  Depreciation (1,204) (1,205)
Operating income 2,819 3,310
Other expense (2,255) (2,075)
Income before benefit for income taxes 564 1,235
Benefit for income taxes (212) (81) 
Income from continuing operations 776 1,316
Discontinued operations 29 (108)
Net income $ 805 $ 1,208

As of As of

U.S. Operating Real Estate Balance Sheet:

September
30,
2009

December
31, 2008

ASSETS
Investments in real estate, net $ 93,275 $ 75,120

Cash and cash equivalents 4,773 7,008
Restricted cash and escrow deposits 8,215 6,996
Deferred tax assets 7,905 8,743
Deferred charges and other assets, net of amortization 53,817 53,049
Property and related assets, held for sale 36,961 37,498
    Total Assets $ 204,946 $ 188,414

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Non-recourse debt $ 171,822 $ 159,822
Recourse debt 247 257
Other liabilities 12,780 6,589
Accrued income tax liability-current (573) (1,047)
Liabilities related to assets held for sale 31,304 31,310
    Total Liabilities 215,580 196,931
    Total Shareholders' Equity (10,634) (8,517)
    Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 204,946 $ 188,414

    The Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate operations provides property management services to multifamily rental
properties in Puerto Rico in which we have an ownership interest, apartment properties owned by third parties, our
commercial properties, and home-owner associations related to our planned communities.  This segment also provides
management services for our homebuilding and community development operations.  During the three months ended
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March 31, 2009, the Company executed a definitive agreement to sell the Puerto Rico apartment properties.  The
financial impact of these properties has been included as “Held for Sale” and “Discontinued Operations” in the segment
disclosures below.  On August 31, 2009, the Company completed the sale of IGP to PBE and its associates for
$14,300,000.  Prior to the sale, IGP was restructured to include only the
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Company’s general and limited partnership interests in nine partnerships which own twelve properties with 2,653
subsidized apartments in Puerto Rico, as well as the Section 8 affordable housing management contracts.  IGP
Property Holdings, Inc. was established to hold the ownership interests of the two commercial properties ranging from
28% to 100%.

For the nine months ended

Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate:
September 30,

2009
September 30,

2008

Operating revenues $ 750 $ 299
Operating expenses 511 479
Net operating income 239 (180)
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 164 111
  General, administrative, selling and marketing (443) (754)
  Depreciation (171) (170)
Operating loss (211) (993)
Other expense (207) (458)
Loss before benefit for income taxes (418) (1,451)
Benefit from income taxes - (14)
Loss from continuing operations (418) (1,437)

Discontinued operations 1,871 581
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes 25,351 -
Total discontinued operations 27,222 581

Net income (loss) $ 26,804 $ (856)

For the three months ended

Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate:
September 30,

2009
September 30,

2008

Operating revenues $ 305 $ 103
Operating expenses 175 173
Net operating income 130 (70)
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 88 37
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 3 (192)
  Depreciation (2) (57)
Operating income (loss) 219 (282)
Other income (expense) 96 (150)
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes 315 (432)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 612 (292) 
Loss from continuing operations (297) (140)

Discontinued operations (979) (185)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes 25,351 -
Total discontinued operations 24,372 (185)

Net income (loss) $ 24,075 $ (325)
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As of As of

Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate Balance Sheet:

September
30,
2009

December
31, 2008

ASSETS
Investments in real estate $ 9,353 $ 9,524

Cash and cash equivalents 12,788 6,825
Restricted cash and escrow deposits 8 103
Investments in unconsolidated real estate entities 17,522 17,311
Deferred charges and other assets, net of amortization 19,051 16,613
Property and related assets, held for sale - 45,636
    Total Assets $ 58,722 $ 96,012

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Non-recourse debt $ 8,326 $ 8,399
Other liabilities 19,031 6,801
Accrued income tax liability-current 4,074 4,259
Liabilities related to assets held for sale - 80,502
    Total Liabilities 31,431 99,961
    Total Shareholders' Equity 27,291 (3,949)
    Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 58,722 $ 96,012

Land Development

The Land Development Operation involves community development and homebuilding services in the U.S. and
Puerto Rico.  The Land Development Operations are managed through ALD and LDA.  ALD and its subsidiary
comprise the U.S. Land Development Operations and own and develop our land holdings in St. Charles, Maryland. St.
Charles is a 9,000 acre planned community consisting of residential, commercial, recreational and open space
land.  We also remain open to construction and acquisition of additional properties that will add value to our existing
investment assets.

          For the nine months
ended

U.S. Land Development Operations:

September
30,
2009

September
30,
2008

Operating revenues
  Community development - land sales $ 6,992 $ 6,457
Operating expenses
  Cost of land sales 5,195 5,218
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 2,619 2,541
  Depreciation 7 4
   Total expenses 7,821 7,763
Operating loss (829) (1,306)
Other expense (1,762) (1,940)
Loss before benefit for income taxes (2,591) (3,246)
Benefit for income taxes (1,611) (1,396)
Net loss $ (980) $ (1,850)
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For the three months
ended

U.S. Land Development Operations:

September
30,
2009

September
30,
2008

Operating revenues
  Community development - land sales $ 3,462 $ 460
Operating expenses
  Cost of land sales 2,551 493
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 844 909
  Depreciation 3 1
   Total expenses 3,398 1,403
Operating income (loss) 64 (943)
Other expense (515) (581)
Loss before benefit for income taxes (451) (1,524)
Benefit for income taxes (690) (569)
Net income (loss) $ 239 $ (955)

As of As of

U.S. Land Development Balance Sheet:
September 30,

2009
December 31,

2008
ASSETS
Investments in real estate $ 80,144 $ 81,821

Cash and cash equivalents 3,469 10,140
Restricted cash and escrow deposits 1,651 2,399
Deferred tax assets 19,948 19,151
Deferred charges and other assets, net of amortization 2,966 1,129
    Total Assets $ 108,178 $ 114,640

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Recourse debt $ 32,587 $ 37,542
Other liabilities 9,857 13,383
Payable to U.S. operating real estate segment 40,646 38,305
Accrued income tax liability-current 14,608 15,803
    Total Liabilities 97,698 105,033
    Total Shareholders' Equity 10,450 9,607
    Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 108,178 $ 114,640

Puerto Rican Land Development operations hold our community development assets in Puerto Rico, consisting of two
planned communities, owned by LDA.  The first planned community, Parque Escorial, is currently under development
and consists of residential, commercial and recreation land similar to our U.S. operations but on a smaller scale.  Our
second planned community, Parque El Commandante, is currently in the planning stages.  Our homebuilding
operation builds condominiums for sale on land located in its planned communities.  Each homebuilding project is
organized into separate entities, all wholly owned by IGP and LDA.  LDA also retained a limited partner interest in
two commercial buildings in Parque Escorial opened in 2001 and 2005 which were built on land contributed by LDA.
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For the nine months ended

Puerto Rican Land Development Operations:
September
30, 2009

September
30, 2008

Operating revenues
  Homebuilding – home sales $246 $3,476
Operating expenses
  Cost of home sales 217 2,694
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 289 251
  Total expenses 506 2,945
Operating (loss) income (260 ) 531
Other income 484 537
Income before benefit for income taxes 224 1,068
Benefit for income taxes (124 ) -
Net income $348 $1,068

For the three months
ended

Puerto Rican Land Development Operations:
September
30, 2009

September
30, 2008

Operating revenues
  Homebuilding – home sales $ 246 $ 494
Operating expenses
  Cost of home sales 197 394
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 101 69
  Total expenses 298 463
Operating (loss) income (52) 31
Other income 174 120
Income before benefit for income taxes 122 151
Benefit for income taxes (124) -
Net income $ 246 $ 151

As of As of

Puerto Rican Land Development Balance Sheet:

September
30,
2009

December
31,
 2008

ASSETS
Investments in real estate $ 24,134 $ 20,310

Cash and cash equivalents 478 64
Investments in unconsolidated real estate entities 14,789 14,234
Deferred charges and other assets, net of amortization 13,255 13,863
    Total Assets $ 52,656 $ 48,471

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Recourse debt $ 6,247 $ 4,327
Accrued income tax liability – current (162) -
Accrued income tax liability – deferred 2,296 (644)
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Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 26,743 24,767
    Total Liabilities 35,124 28,450
    Total Shareholders' Equity 17,532 20,021
    Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 52,656 $ 48,471
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Corporate

The Company’s Corporate segment consists of the general and administrative expenses necessary to operate as a public
company.  These costs have not been allocated to the apartment rental and land development divisions.

The following tables reconcile the segment reporting to the financial statements.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009:

Revenues Expenses
Operating
Income

Other
Income/
(Expense)

Income
Before
Provision
(Benefit)

for
Income
Taxes

Provision
(Benefit) for
Income
Taxes

Income
(Loss)
from

Continuing
Operations

Discontinued
Operations

Consolidated
Net

Income
(Loss)

Operating
Real Estate
  U.S. $ 25,257 $ 16,000 $ 9,257 $ (6,452) $   2,805 $ 131 $ 2,674 $ (533) $   2,141
  P.R. 914 1,125 (211) (207) (418) - (418) 27,222 26,804
Total
Operating
Real Estate 26,171 17,125   9,046 (6,659)   2,387 131   2,256 26,689  28,945
Land
Development
  U.S. 6,992 7,821 (829) (1,762) (2,591) (1,611) (980) - (980)
  P.R. 246 506 (260) 484 224 (124) 348 - 348
Total Land
Development 7,238 8,327 (1,089) (1,278) (2,367) (1,735) (632) (632)
Corporate - 3,459 (3,459) 1,480 (1,979) - (1,979) - (1,979)
Intersegment (3) (734) 731 (1,099) (368) - (368) - (368) 

$ 33,406 $ 28,177 $ 5,229 $ (7,556) $ (2,327) $ (1,604) $ (723) $ 26,689 $  25,966
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2008:

Revenues Expenses
Operating
Income

Other
Income/
(Expense)

Income
Before
Provision
(Benefit)

for
Income
Taxes

Provision
(Benefit) for
Income
Taxes

Income
(Loss)
from

Continuing
Operations

Discontinued
Operations

Consolidated
Net

Income
(Loss)

Operating
Real Estate
  U.S. $ 25,602 $ 16,209 $ 9,393 $ (5,944) $   3,449 $ 366 $ 3,083 $ (357) $   2,725
  P.R. 1,138 2,131 (993) (458) (1,451) (14) (1,437) 581 (855) 
Total
Operating
Real Estate 26,740 18,340   8,400 (6,402)   1,998 352   1,646       224   1,870
Land
Development
  U.S. 6,457 7,763 (1,306) (1,940) (3,246) (1,396) (1,850) - (1,850)
  P.R. 3,476 2,945 531 537 1,068 - 1,068 - 1,068
Total Land
Development 9,933 10,708 (775) (1,403) (2,178) (1,396) (782) (782)
Corporate - 3,825 (3,825) (1,491) (5,316) (117) (5,199) - (5,199)
Intersegment (20) (1,123) 1,103 2,822 3,925 124 3,801 - 3,801

$ 36,653 $ 31,750 $ 4,903 $ (6,474) $ (1,571) $ (1,037) $ (534) $   224 $   (310) 

For the three months ended September 30, 2009:

Revenues Expenses
Operating
Income

Other
Income/
(Expense)

Income
Before
Provision
(Benefit)

for
Income
Taxes

Provision
(Benefit) for
Income
Taxes

Income
(Loss)
from

Continuing
Operations

Discontinued
Operations

Consolidated
Net

Income
(Loss)

Operating
Real Estate
  U.S. $ 8,349 $ 5,530 $ 2,819 $ (2,255) $ 564 $ (212) $ 776 $ 29 $ 805
  P.R. 393 174 219 96 315 612 (297)  24,372 24,075
Total
Operating
Real Estate  8,742 5,704  3,038 (2,159) 879  400 479  24,401 24,880
Land
Development
  U.S. 3,462 3,398 64 (515) (451) (690) 239 - 239
  P.R. 246 298 (52) 174 122 (124) 246 - 246
Total Land
Development  3,708  3,696 12 (341) (329) (814)  485 - 485
Corporate (409) 1,341 (1,750) 1,746 (4) (120) 116 - 116
Intersegment 10 (164) 174 (1,708) (1,534) (40) (1,494) - (1,494) 

$ 12,051 $ 10,577 $ 1,474 $ (2,462) $ (988) $ (574) $ (414) $  24,401 $ 23,987
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For the three months ended September 30, 2008:

Revenues Expenses
Operating
Income

Other
Income/
(Expense)

Income
Before
Provision
(Benefit)

for
Income
Taxes

Provision
(Benefit) for
Income
Taxes

Income
(Loss)
from

Continuing
Operations

Discontinued
Operations

Consolidated
Net

Income
(Loss)

Operating
Real Estate
  U.S. $ 8,577 $ 5,267 $ 3,310 $ (2,075) $ 1,235 $ (81) $ 1,316 $ (108) $ 1,208
  P.R. 368 650 (282) (150) (432) (292) (140) (185) (325)
Total
Operating
Real Estate  8,945 5,917  3,028 (2,225) 803  (373) 1,176  (293)     883
Land
Development
  U.S. 460 1,403 (943) (581) (1,524) (569) (955) - (955)
  P.R. 494 463 31 120 151 - 151 - 151
Total Land
Development  954  1,866 (912) (461) (1,373) (569)  (804) - (804)
Corporate - 1,147 (1,147) 301 (846) 22 (868) - (868)
Intersegment (7) (479) 472 215 687 158 529 - 529

$ 9,892 $ 8,451 $ 1,441 $ (2,170) $ (729) $ (762) $ 33 $  (293) $ (260)

As of September 30, 2009:
Investment
in Real
Estate

Total
Assets

Recourse
Debt

Non-recourse
Debt

Total
Liabilities

Operating Real Estate
  U.S. $ 93,275 $ 204,946 $ 247 $ 171,822 $ 215,580
  P.R. 9,353 58,722 - 8,326 31,431
Total Operating Real Estate  102,628 263,668  247  180,148 247,011
Land Development
  U.S. 80,144 108,178 32,587 - 97,698
  P.R. 24,134 52,656 6,247 - 35,124
Total Land Development 104,278 160,834  38,834 -  132,822
Corporate - 19,715 - - 1,731
Intersegment (2,362) (162,059) (1,485) - (120,867)
Held for sale - 36,961 - - 31,304

$ 204,544 $ 319,119 $ 37,596 $ 180,148 $ 292,001
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As of December 31, 2008:
Investment
in Real
Estate

Total
Assets

Recourse
Debt

Non-recourse
Debt

Total
Liabilities

Operating Real Estate
  U.S. $ 75,120 $ 150,916 $ 257 $ 159,822 $ 165,621
  P.R. 9,524 35,623 - 8,399 15,199
Total Operating Real Estate 84,644 186,539   257 168,221 180,820
Land Development
  U.S. 81,821 114,640 37,542 - 105,033
  P.R. 20,310  48,471 4,327 - 28,450
Total Land Development 102,131 163,111 41,869 - 133,483
Corporate - 12,663 - - -
Intersegment (1,282) (100,748) (2,710) - (72,159)
Held for Sale - 93,628 - - 111,812

$ 185,493 $ 355,193 $ 39,416 $ 168,221 $ 353,956

(10) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

For the nine months ended September 30 (in thousands):
2009 2008

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized of $1,020,000 and $1,246,000 $ 9,999 $ 9,194
Income taxes paid $ 107 $ 96

Non-cash investing activity:
Purchases of rental projects under construction or development included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities $ 4,472 $ 1,216

(11) SHARE GRANTS AND APPRECIATION RIGHTS  

                On June 3, 2009 at ACPT’s Annual Shareholder Meeting, ACPT adopted a share incentive plan (the "Share
Incentive Plan") to provide for share-based incentive compensation for officers, key employees and trustees.  ACPT’s
prior employee share incentive plan and trustee share incentive plan expired on July 7, 2008.

                Under the Share Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees (the "Compensation
Committee") is authorized to grant options, share appreciation rights and other equity-based awards.   Each type of
award may be granted alone or together with other awards under the Share Incentive Plan.  The Compensation
Committee was also authorized to determine the duration and vesting criteria for awards, including whether vesting
will be accelerated upon a change in control of ACPT. A total of 750,000 registered shares have been reserved for
issuance under the Share Incentive Plan.

Trustee Share Grants
                On August 28, 2006, the Company awarded 8,000 shares to each of its four non-employee Trustees pursuant
to the Trustee Share Plan.  The shares vest annually at a rate of 1,600 shares per year, per Trustee, with the initial
tranche of shares vesting immediately at the grant date. In June 2008, the Company accelerated the vesting of the
shares of two trustees, who did not return to the Board of Trustees, with all previously unvested shares vesting as of
September 30, 2008. In accordance with FASB ASC 718 (SFAS 123(R)), the Company measured compensation cost
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at $643,000, which represents the grant date fair value.  The Company will recognize compensation expense over the
vesting period and, accordingly, recognized $48,000 and $16,000 for the nine and three month periods ended
September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $143,000 and $32,000 for the same periods of 2008, respectively.
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      On February 5, 2009, the Company’s Board of Trustees amended Article III, Section 10 of the Company’s
Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amended (the “Bylaws”), to simplify and standardize the overall non-employee
Trustee compensation effective January 1, 2009. Trustees are eligible to participate in any share incentive plan
adopted for such purpose by the Company, and shall each receive, immediately following each annual meeting of
shareholders, an annual grant of restricted shares valued at $30,000 based on the terms of the Company's share
incentive plan, which shall entitle the holder to any dividends declared on the Company's common shares and shall
become fully vested on the first anniversary of the grant date.  In accordance with FASB ASC 718 (SFAS 123(R)), the
Company began accruing compensation cost based on the current fair value using a grant date of June 3, 2009, the
date the 2009 Share Incentive Plan was approved at the annual shareholders meeting.   These shares were issued by
the Compensation Committee during September 2009.  The Company recognized compensation expense of $104,325
and $87,000 for the nine and three month periods ended September 30, 2009, respectively.

Employee Share Grants
During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company and the Chief Executive Officer entered into an employment
agreement, which included restricted shares with both performance and time vesting criteria.  Pursuant to this
agreement, ACPT agreed to award the Chief Executive Officer 363,743 in common shares with 50% subject to time
vesting equally over the five years beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and 50% subject to performance
vesting over a period not to exceed five years from the first anniversary of the grant date.  While the Share Incentive
Plan has been approved, the Compensation Committee has not yet established the performance vesting criteria.   In
accordance with FASB ASC 718 (SFAS 123(R)), the Company measured compensation cost as $1,855,000, which
represents the grant date fair value of the time vesting component of the grant.  The Company will recognize
compensation expense over the vesting period and, accordingly, recognized $331,000 and $177,000 for the nine and
three month periods ended September 30, 2009, respectively.   For the remaining portion of the award, the
performance criteria have not yet been established or approved.  However, on September 9, 2009, the Company
finalized a Restricted Share Award Agreement with the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to which he was granted
36,374 restricted shares for his performance over the past year and provided an outline for the remaining 145,498
performance vesting shares.  If the Compensation Committee and the Board of Trustees of the Company have not
approved performance-based vesting provisions within six months, 36,374 performance based shares will be vested on
September 30 of each of 2010, 2011 and 2012.  As the granted shares vested as of September 30, 2009, the Company
recognized $246,000 for the nine and three month periods ended September 30, 2009.    

Share Appreciation Rights
                In April 2001, 140,000 share appreciation rights were granted to employees.  These rights bear a $4 per
share base price, and vested in equal increments over a five-year period that commenced on April 2002.  As of
September 30, 2009, there were 10,400 outstanding rights which are all exercisable and expire on April 30, 2011.  The
Company recognized $34,000 and $21,000 for the nine and three month periods ended September 30, 2009,
respectively, compared to ($190,000) and ($34,000) for the same periods of 2008, respectively, of compensation
expense in connection with the outstanding rights.

(12) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the
weighted-average number of common shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period.

For the nine and three month periods ending September 30, 2009, 159,079 unvested common shares were not included
in the computation of diluted net earnings per share as their effect would have been antidilutive.
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Management has reviewed all subsequent events through November 16, 2009 to determine whether these events or
transactions should be included in either the financial statement or the footnote disclosures.

- 34 -

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST - Form 10-Q

62



Table of Contents

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION

Special Note Regarding Forward – Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains various “forward-looking statements.”  Forward-looking statements relate
to expectations, beliefs, projections, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar expressions
concerning matters that are not historical facts.  In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by the use
of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “seeks,” “intends,” “plans,”
“projects,” “estimates” or anticipates” or the negative of these words and phrases or similar words or phrases.  Statements
regarding the following subjects may be impacted by a number of risks and uncertainties:

·  our business and investment strategy;
·  our projected results of operations;
·  our ability to manage our anticipated growth;
·  our ability to obtain future financing arrangements;
·  our estimates relating to, and our ability to pay, future distributions;
·  our understanding of our competition and our ability to compete effectively;
·  real estate market and industry trends in the United States, and particularly
in the St. Charles, Maryland marketplace and its surrounding areas, and
Puerto Rico;
·  projected capital and operating expenditures;
·  availability and creditworthiness of current and prospective tenants;
·  interest rates; and
·  lease rates and terms.

The forward-looking statements are based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectations of our future performance,
taking into account all information currently available to us.  These beliefs, assumptions and expectations are subject
to risks and uncertainties and can change as a result of many possible events or factors, not all of which are known to
us.  If a change occurs, our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations may vary materially from
those expressed in our forward-looking statements.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
appearing in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

GENERAL

ACPT is a self managed holding company that is primarily engaged in the business of investing in and managing
multifamily rental properties as well as community development and homebuilding through its consolidated
subsidiaries.  ACPT operates in two principal lines of business, Operating Real Estate and Land Development, and
conducts its operations in both the United States and Puerto Rico.

U.S. Operating Real Estate

Our U.S. Operating Real Estate business is managed through American Rental Properties Trust ("ARPT") and
American Rental Management Company ("ARMC").  ARPT holds the general and limited partnership interests in our
single-purpose entities that own the U.S. Apartment Properties.  ARPT's ownership in these entities ranges from 0.1%
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to 100%.  Our U.S. Operating Real Estate business operations also includes the management of apartment properties
in which we have an ownership interest and one third-party owned apartment property.    

Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate

Our Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate business had been conducted through IGP Group Corporation (“IGP Group”)
until August 31, 2009, when the Company completed the sale of a subsidiary to IGP Group, Interstate General
Properties Limited Partnership S.E (“IGP”) to Partners Business Equities, LLC (“PBE”) and its
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associates.  Prior to the sale, IGP was restructured to include only the Company’s general and limited partnership
interests in nine partnerships which own twelve properties with 2,653 subsidized apartments in Puerto Rico, as well as
the Section 8 affordable housing management contracts.  IGP Property Holdings, Inc. (“IGPPH”) was established to
hold the ownership interests of the two commercial properties ranging from 28% to 100%.  IGPPH also provides
management services for our Puerto Rican homebuilding and community development.

U.S. Land Development

Our U.S. Land Development operations are managed through American Land Development, Inc. ("ALD").  ALD
owns and develops our land holdings in St. Charles, Maryland (“St. Charles”), which consists of a 9,000 acre planned
community consisting of residential, commercial, recreational and open space land.  ALD also had a 50% interest in a
land development joint venture formed to develop land for an active adult community in St. Charles until we sold our
interest in the venture in November 2008.  In October 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Surrey
Homes, LLC (“Surrey Homes”) to contribute $2,000,000, which was paid as of September 30, 2009, in exchange for a
50% ownership interest in Surrey Homes.

Puerto Rican Land Development

Our Puerto Rican Land Development operations are conducted through Land Development Associates, S.E.
(“LDA”).  LDA holds our community development assets in Puerto Rico, which consists of two planned
communities.  The first planned community, Parque Escorial, is currently under development and consists of
residential, commercial and recreational land similar to our U.S. land development operations but on a smaller
scale.  Our second planned community, Parque El Commandante, is currently in the planning stages with the rezoning
of the first 80 acres nearly completed.  Our homebuilding operation builds condominiums for sale on land located in
its planned communities.  LDA retained a limited partnership interest in two commercial buildings in Parque Escorial
opened in 2001 and 2005, which were built on land contributed by LDA.

Income Taxes

ACPT is taxed as a U.S. partnership and its income flows through to its shareholders.  ACPT is subject to Puerto Rico
taxes on IGP Group’s taxable income, generating foreign tax credits that have been passed through to ACPT’s
shareholders. A Federal tax regulation has been proposed that could eliminate the ability to pass through these foreign
tax credits to ACPT’s shareholders.  Comments on the proposed regulation are currently being evaluated with the final
regulation effective for tax years beginning after the final regulation is ultimately published in the Federal
Register.   ACPT’s income consists of (i) certain passive income from IGP Group, a controlled foreign corporation, (ii)
distributions from IGP Group and (iii) dividends from ACPT’s U.S. subsidiaries.  Other than Interstate Commercial
Properties (“ICP”), which is taxed as a Puerto Rico corporation, the income from the remaining Puerto Rico operating
entities passes through to IGP Group or ALD.  Of this income, only the portion attributable to the profits on the
residential land sold in Parque Escorial passes through to ALD.  ALD, ARMC, and ARPT are taxed as U.S.
corporations.  The taxable income from the U.S. apartment properties flows through to ARPT.

Additionally, as a result of holding our partnership interests in certain U.S. multifamily apartment properties over
many years there is approximately $45,000,000 of distributions in excess of our partnership basis, related to these
holdings.   Should a triggering event take place, such as sale or liquidation of the underlying partnership assets or
interests, the Company would be required to recognize taxable income related to this low basis and pay tax
accordingly.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST - Form 10-Q

65



On September 25, 2009, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with
FCP Fund I, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“FCP”), and FCP/ACPT Acquisition Company, Inc., a Maryland
corporation and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of FCP (“Merger Sub”).  Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at
closing, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company, with the Company continuing as the surviving company
and an indirect subsidiary of FCP (the “Merger”).
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     Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger, each common share of the
Company, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, other than common shares
owned by the Company, FCP, Merger Sub or any subsidiary of the Company or FCP, will be cancelled and
automatically converted into the right to receive $7.75 (the “Per-Share Amount”) in cash, without interest.  In addition,
at the effective time of the Merger, each of the outstanding share appreciation rights will be cancelled and converted
into the right to receive an amount in cash equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the Per-Share Amount over
the base price per common share underlying such share appreciation right multiplied by (ii) the number of common
shares subject to such share appreciation right.  In addition, each unvested restricted common share of the Company
that, by its terms, vests automatically upon the consummation of the Merger will fully vest in accordance with its
terms and be considered an outstanding common share for all purposes, including the right to receive the Per-Share
Amount.  Any unvested restricted common shares that, by their terms, do not vest automatically upon the
consummation of the Merger, will be cancelled and retired without any consideration for such shares.

Consummation of the Merger is not subject to a financing condition, but is subject to other conditions, including,
among other things, (i) the receipt of the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding common
shares in favor of the Merger, (ii) receipt of certain third-party consents, (iii) the distribution to the Company of
certain earnings and profits from a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (iv) the determination by FCP that there
is not a substantial risk that the Company does not qualify or has not qualified as a partnership for tax purposes,
provided that, in the event of such determination, a tax opinion of legal counsel would satisfy such condition, and (v)
other customary closing conditions.  The parties currently expect to close the transaction prior to March 31, 2010,
subject to the satisfaction of the foregoing conditions.

           For more information regarding the Merger Agreement and the Merger, see the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on September 28, 2009.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR THE THIRD QUARTER 2009 RESULTS

Consolidated operating revenues are derived primarily from rental revenue, community development land sales and
home sales.

For the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, our consolidated rental revenues increased $366,000 and
$74,000, or 1%, to $25,772,000 and $8,600,000, respectively, as compared to $25,406,000 and $8,526,000,
respectively, for the same periods ended September 30, 2008.  The increase was primarily attributable to increased
leasing in the Company’s Puerto Rico commercial office building as well as overall rent increases at comparable
properties in both the United States and Puerto Rico offset by an increase in vacancies.  Consolidated net operating
income (“NOI”), defined as rental property revenues less rental property operating expenses, is the primary performance
measure we use to assess the results of our operations.  We provide NOI as a supplement to net income calculated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). NOI does not represent net income calculated in
accordance with GAAP.  As such, it should not be considered an alternative to net income as an indication of our
operating performance.  ACPT’s NOI increased $409,000, or 3%, to $14,318,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and decreased $128,000, or 3%, to $4,619,000 during the three months ended September 30,
2009, as compared to $13,909,000 and $4,747,000, respectively, for the same periods in 2008.  This represents ACPT’s
annual rent increase of 3% and the impact of our costs saving initiatives offset by increases in vacancy rates during the
third quarter of 2009.

Community development land sales for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 increased $535,000 and
$3,002,000, or 8% and 653%, to $6,992,000 and $3,462,000, respectively, as compared to $6,457,000 and $460,000,
respectively, for the same periods ended September 30, 2008.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the
Company sold 85 lots compared to 69 lots in the same period of 2008.  During the three months ended September 30,
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2009, the Company sold 44 lots compared to no lot sales for the same period in 2008.

There was one home sale during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 for $246,000 as compared to
$3,476,000 and $494,000, respectively, for the same periods of 2008.  The Company closed 12 units during the nine
months ended September 30, 2008 with three units closed in the three months ended September 30, 2008.

- 37 -

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST - Form 10-Q

68



Table of Contents

The Company pools its overhead costs, including accounting, human resources, office management, technology and
executive office costs, and allocates those costs to its segments based on percentages of management’s allocated
time.  General, administrative, selling and marketing costs for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009,
decreased $76,000 and increased $660,000, or (1%) and 29%, to $7,304,000 and $2,969,000, respectively, as
compared to $7,380,000 and $2,309,000, respectively, for the same periods ended September 30, 2008.  The decrease
during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 was the result the reorganization and costs saving initiatives
implemented in the three months ended December 31, 2008 offset by increased legal and accounting costs, accruals
for share-based compensation issued to the Chief Executive Officer and non-employee Trustees, and consulting costs
related to the Merger.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company decided to sell the five U.S. apartment properties in
Baltimore, Maryland and is currently working with a broker to complete the five Baltimore transactions.  In
accordance with FASB ASC 360 (SFAS No. 144), the carrying value of the Baltimore Properties’ assets had been
classified as “held for sale” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets at September 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008, and the properties’ results of operations had been classified as “discontinued operations” for all periods presented
in the consolidated statements of income.  Depreciation is suspended during the period the property is classified as
held for sale.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company executed a definitive agreement to sell the Puerto Rico
apartment properties.  The financial impact of these properties has also been included as “held for sale” and
“Discontinued Operations” in the segment disclosures below.  On August 31, 2009, the Company completed the sale of
IGP to PBE and its associates for $14,300,000.  Prior to the sale, IGP was restructured to include only the Company’s
general and limited partnership interests in nine partnerships which own twelve properties with 2,653 subsidized
apartments in Puerto Rico, as well as the Section 8 affordable housing management contracts.  While all of the assets
and liabilities have been derecognized on the balance sheet at September 30, 2009, eight months of operations have
been included in “Discontinued Operations” in the Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate segment with the net gain of
$25,351,000 included in “Gain on Sale of Discontinued Operations” on the Statement of Income.

In the nine and three month periods ending September 30, 2009, ACPT recognized a loss on write-down of fair value
less costs to sell of $882,000 and $43,000, respectively, related to the Baltimore properties currently classified as held
for sale.  The Company has entered into binding purchase agreements for two of the five properties (Milford I and II),
which are subject to certain closing conditions, and continues to market Nottingham, Owings Chase and Prescott
Square.  As a result, the Company determined that an impairment charge was required to further reduce the carrying
values of the Baltimore properties to their estimated fair market value.

On a consolidated basis, the Company reported net income attributable to ACPT of $25,262,000 and $24,575,000 for
the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, inclusive of the net gain on sale of
$24,867,000.  The net income attributable to ACPT for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 included a total
provision for income taxes of $9,646,000 consisting of a $1,604,000 tax benefit related to losses before discontinued
operations and a $11,250,000 tax provision included in discontinued operations.  As a result, the total consolidated
effective tax rate attributable to ACPT was approximately (28%).  The total consolidated effective rate was impacted
by the change in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance and accrued taxes and penalties related to uncertain tax
positions.  For further discussion of these items, see “Results of Operations-Income Taxes – Provision for (Benefit from)
Income Taxes” and Note 7 of our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Securities and Exchange Commission defines critical accounting policies as those that are most important to the
portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity
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estimates and assumptions.  These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting periods.  If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and
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circumstances relating to various transactions had been different, it is possible that different accounting policies would
have been applied resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements.  Below is a discussion of accounting
policies which we consider critical in that they may require complex judgment in their application or require estimates
about matters which are inherently uncertain.

Refer to the Company’s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of critical accounting policies, which
include sales, profit recognition and cost capitalization, investment in unconsolidated real estate entities, impairment
of long lived assets, depreciation of investments in real estate, income taxes and contingencies.  For the nine and three
months ended September 30, 2009, there were no material changes to our policies.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion is based on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.  It compares the
components of the results of operations of the Company by segment for the nine and three months ended September
30, 2009 and 2008 (unaudited).  Historically, the Company’s financial results have been significantly affected by the
cyclical nature of the real estate industry.  Accordingly, the Company’s historical financial statements may not be
indicative of future results.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and notes included elsewhere in this report and within our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

OPERATING REAL ESTATE   

For the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, our Operating Real Estate line of business generated NOI of
$14,318,000 and $4,630,000, an increase of $425,000 and a decrease of ($111,000), respectively, compared to
$13,893,000 and $4,741,000, respectively, of NOI generated by that line of business for the same periods in
2008.  Additional information and analysis of the U.S. Operating Real Estate and Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate
operations can be found in the tables below.

U.S. Operating Real Estate Operations

For the nine months ended

U.S. Operating Real Estate:
September 30,

2009
September
30, 2008

Operating revenues $ 25,022 $ 25,107
Operating expenses 10,943 11,034
Net operating income 14,079 14,073
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 58 117
  General, administrative, selling and marketing (1,346) (1,063)
  Depreciation (3,534) (3,734)
Operating income 9,257 9,393
Other expense (6,452) (5,944)
Income before provision for income taxes   2,805 3,449
Provision for income taxes  131 366
Income from continuing operations 2,674 3,083
Discontinued operations (533) (357)
Net income $ 2,141 $ 2,726

Depreciation 3,534 4,564
FFO $ 5,675 $ 7,790
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For the three months
ended

U.S. Operating Real Estate:
September
30, 2009

September
30, 2008

Operating revenues $ 8,295 $ 8,423
Operating expenses 3,795 3,612
Net operating income 4,500 4,811
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 10 38
  General, administrative, selling and marketing (487) (334)
  Depreciation (1,204) (1,205)
Operating income 2,819 3,310
Other expense (2,255) (2,075)
Income before benefit for income taxes 564 1,235
Benefit for income taxes (212) (81) 
Income from continuing operations 776 1,316
Discontinued operations 29 (108)
Net income $ 805 $ 1,208

Depreciation 1,203 1,485
FFO $ 2,008 $ 2,693

NOI increased $6,000 and decreased $311,000, or 1% and (6%), to $14,079,000 and $4,500,000 during the nine and
three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, as compared to $14,073,000 and $4,811,000 for the same
periods in 2008, respectively.  As described below, NOI has remained relatively consistent during the nine month
periods ending September 30, 2009 and 2008 as overall rental property operating expenses due to management’s cost
saving initiatives were offset in three months ended September 30, 2009 by significant increases in vacancies as well
as increases in advertising and concessions expenses to increase leasing activity.

Rental Property Revenues and Operating Expenses

Rental property operating revenues decreased $85,000 and $128,000, or 1% and 2%, for the nine and three months
ended September 30, 2009, to $25,022,000 and $8,295,000, respectively, compared to $25,107,000 and $8,423,000,
respectively, for the same periods of 2008.  In 2009, annual rent increases have been offset by an increase in
vacancies. Gross rental revenues remained relatively consistent with a 1% increase over the prior year while vacancies
increased from 5% to 6%.

Rental property operating expenses decreased $91,000, or 1%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
increased $183,000, or 5%, for the three months ended September 30, 2009 to $10,943,000 and $3,795,000,
respectively, compared to $11,034,000 and $3,612,000, respectively, for the same periods of 2008.  The overall
decrease in rental property operating expenses was primarily the result of management’s cost saving initiatives with
significant decreases in spending on salaries and benefits, repairs and maintenance, office expenses, and vehicle
expenses offset by increases in advertising and concessions in the third quarter to remediate the increase in vacancies.

General, Administrative, Selling and Marketing Expenses

The primary component of the general, administrative, selling and marketing expenses is the corporate overhead
allocation.  General, administrative, selling and marketing expenses increased $283,000 and $153,000, or 27% and
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46%, to $1,346,000 and $487,000 during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, as
compared to $1,063,000 and $334,000 and for the same periods in 2008, respectively.  Overall, general and
administrative expenses decreased for the consolidated Company.  However, the increase for this segment was due to
the methodology by which the Company allocates general and administrative expenses between segments.  See
“Results of Operations – Corporate.”
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Our unconsolidated and managed-only apartment properties reimburse the Company for certain corporate overhead
costs that are attributable to the operations of those properties.  In accordance with FASB ASC 605 (EITF Topic
01-14), the cost and reimbursement of these costs are not included in general and administrative expenses, but rather
they are reflected as separate line items on the consolidated income statement.

Depreciation

Depreciation decreased $200,000, or 6%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 to $3,534,000 compared to
$3,734,000 for the same period of 2008 as a result of a depreciation catch-up adjustment that was recorded in the first
quarter of 2008 related to the Sheffield Green apartments.  For the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
depreciation expense slightly decreased by $1,000 to $1,204,000 from $1,205,000 as a result of a decrease in
depreciable assets.

Interest and other income

Interest and other income decreased $1,218,000 and $427,000, or 48% and 70%, during the first nine and three
months ended September 30, 2009 to $1,328,000 and $187,000, respectively, as compared to $2,546,000 and
$614,000, respectively, for the same periods of 2008 as a result of decreased deposits due to the higher than
anticipated vacancies as well as a decline in interest rates from 2008 to 2009.

Interest Expense

For 2009 and 2008, interest expense primarily consisted of interest incurred on the non-recourse debt from our
investment properties.  Interest expense decreased $710,000 and $247,000, or 8%, to $7,780,000 and $2,442,000 for
the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, as compared to $8,490,000 and $2,689,000,
respectively, for the same periods in 2008.  The decrease in interest expense resulted from routine amortization of our
loans.  

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations decreased by $176,000 to ($533,000) for the nine months ended September 30, 2009
compared to ($357,000) for the same period of 2008.   While the rental operating revenues remained consistent from
the prior year, operating expenses have increased by $148,000 year over year for concessions, bad debts, and repairs
and maintenance.  In addition, the net affect of recognizing the loss on write-down to fair value less costs to sell of
$882,000 was slightly offset by the ceasing the recording of depreciation expense on the Baltimore properties which
were classified as discontinued operations in the three months ended September 30, 2009.  In 2008, we recorded
$829,000 of depreciation expenses related to these properties.  Discontinued operations increased by $137,000 to
$29,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2009 compared to ($108,000) for the same period of 2008.   The
increase was primarily the result of ceasing the recording of depreciation expense on the Baltimore properties, which
had $280,000 in depreciation expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2008, offset by a $43,000
write-down to fair value during the three months ended September 30, 2009.

Funds from Operations

Funds from Operations (“FFO”) is a non-GAAP financial measure that we believe, when considered with the financial
statements prepared in accordance with GAAP, is helpful to investors in understanding our performance because it
captures features particular to real estate performance by recognizing that real estate generally appreciates over time or
maintains residual value to a much greater extent than do other depreciable assets such as machinery, computers or
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other personal property.  FFO is defined as net income (loss), computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains
(or losses) from sales of depreciable property, plus depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.

FFO decreased $2,115,000 and $685,000, or 27% and 25%, to $5,675,000 and $2,008,000 for the nine and three
months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $7,790,000 and $2,693,000, respectively, for the same
periods in 2008.  The decrease was driven by the impact of the loss on write-down to fair value less costs to sell and
the increase in other expenses.
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Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate Operations
For the nine months ended

Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate:
September 30,

2009
September 30,

2008

Operating revenues $ 750 $ 299
Operating expenses 511 479
Net operating income 239 (180)
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 164 111
  General, administrative, selling and marketing (443) (754)
  Depreciation (171) (170)
Operating loss (211) (993)
Other expense (207) (458)
Loss before provision for income taxes (418) (1,451)
Provision for income taxes - (14)
Loss from continuing operations (418) (1,437)

Discontinued operations 1,871 581
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 25,351 -
Total discontinued operations 27,222 581

Net income (loss) $ 26,804 $ (856)

Gain on sale of discontinued operations (25,351)
Depreciation 243 2,827
FFO $ 1,696 $ (1,971)

For the three months
ended

Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate:

September
30,
2009

September
30,
2008

Operating revenues $ 305 $ 103
Operating expenses 175 173
Net operating income 130 (70)
  Management and other fees, substantially all from related entities 88 37
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 3 (192)
  Depreciation (2) (57)
Operating income (loss) 219 (282)
Other income (expense) 96 (150)
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes 315 (432)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 612 (292) 
Income (loss) from continuing operations (297) (140)

Discontinued operations (979) (185)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 25,351 -
Total discontinued operations 24,372 (185)
Net income (loss) $ 24,075 $ (325)
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Gain on sale of discontinued operations (25,351) -
Depreciation 2 944
FFO $ (1,274) $ 619
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Net Operating Income

NOI increased $419,000 and $200,000, or 233% and 286%, to $239,000 and $130,000 during the nine and three
months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, as compared to ($180,000) and ($70,000) for the same periods in
2008, respectively.  With the Puerto Rican apartment properties classified as held for sale during the nine months
ended September 30, 2009, the continuing Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate Operations consisted of the Puerto
Rico commercial rental property in the community of Parque Escorial, known as Escorial Building One.   The
Company has leased approximately 76% of Escorial Building One.  The increase in the NOI is the result of an
increase in leasing of this building.

Rental Property Revenues and Operating Expenses

Rental property revenues increased $451,000 and $202,000, or 151% and 196%, to $750,000 and $305,000 for the
nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $299,000 and $103,000 and for the same
periods of 2008, respectively.  The increase in our rental property revenues was the result of an increase in leasing of
Escorial Building One.  In addition, we anticipate future rental revenue increases as a result of the sale of IGP.  Prior
to the sale, rental revenue for approximately 10,500 square feet of space was eliminated in consolidation.  As the new
owners of IGP assumed the balance of the lease term, and IGP is no longer a consolidated entity, rental revenues will
not be eliminated in the future.

Rental property operating expenses increased $32,000 and $2,000, or 7% and 1%, to $511,000 and $175,000 for the
nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $479,000 and $173,000 and for the same
periods of 2008, respectively.  The increase was the result of increased occupancy.

Management and other fees

Management and other fees increased $53,000 and $51,000, or 48% and 138%, for the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2009 to $164,000 and $88,000, respectively, as compared to $111,000 and $37,000 for the same
periods in 2008, respectively.  

General, Administrative, Selling and Marketing Expenses

The primary component of general, administrative, selling and marketing expenses is the corporate overhead
allocation.  General, administrative, selling and marketing expenses decreased $311,000 and increased $195,000, or
(41%) or 102%, to $443,000 and ($3,000) during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively,
as compared to $754,000 and $192,000 for the same periods in 2008, respectively.  The decrease was primarily due to
a decrease in overall corporate overhead expenses while the corporate allocation percentage decreased for the fiscal
year with more general, administrative, selling and marketing expenses being incurred by the Discontinued
Operations.  See “Results of Operations – Corporate.”

The apartment properties reimburse IGP for certain costs, including accounting, human resources, office management
and technology, incurred at IGP’s office that are attributable to the operations of those properties.  In accordance with
FASB ASC 605 (EITF 01-14), the costs and reimbursement of these costs are not considered general, administrative,
selling, and marketing expenses but rather, are reflected as separate line items on the consolidated income statement.  

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $276,000 and $207,000, or 42% and 99%, for the nine and three months ended September
30, 2009 to $378,000 and $2,000, respectively, as compared to $654,000 and $209,000 for the same periods in 2008,
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    Discontinued Operations

Total discontinued operations of $26,428,000 and $24,344,000 for the nine and three months ended September 30,
2009, respectively, includes a net gain of $25,411,000 related to the sale of IGP as of August 31, 2009.  Discontinued
operations increased $1,290,000 and decreased ($794,000) to $1,871,000 and ($979,000) for the nine and three
months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $581,000 and $185,000 for the same periods in 2008,
respectively.  The increase was primarily driven by ceasing the recording of depreciation expense on the Puerto Rican
apartment properties which were classified as discontinued operations in the nine months ended September 30,
2009.  We recorded $2,658,000 and $888,000 in depreciation expenses for these properties for the nine and three
months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.  

            Funds from Operations

FFO decreased $275,000 and $2,062,000 to $1,696,000 and ($1,274,000) for the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $1,971,000 and $619,000 for the same periods in 2008, respectively. 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the decrease primarily related to the NOI decrease within the
discontinued operations.  For the three months ended September 30, 2009, the decrease resulted primarily from a
decrease in NOI of $914,000 and an increase in the tax provision of $860,000.

LAND DEVELOPMENT

Our Land Development line of business generated ($1,089,000) and $7,000 of operating losses and income for the
nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to ($775,000) and $(912,000) of operating
losses generated by the line of business for the same periods in 2008, respectively.  This line of business includes both
land and home sales for our U.S. and Puerto Rican operations. Additional information and analysis of the U.S and
Puerto Rican Land Development operations can be found below.

U.S. Land Development Operations

For the nine months ended

U.S. Land Development Operations:

September
30,
2009

September
30,
2008

Operating revenues
  Community development - land sales $ 6,992 $ 6,457
Operating expenses
  Cost of land sales 5,195 5,218
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 2,619 2,541
  Depreciation 7 4
   Total expenses 7,821 7,763
Operating loss (829) (1,306)
Other expense (1,762) (1,940)
Loss before benefit for income taxes (2,591) (3,246)
Benefit for income taxes (1,611) (1,396)
Net loss $ (980) $ (1,850)
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For the three months
ended

U.S. Land Development Operations:

September
30,
2009

September
30,
2008

Operating revenues
  Community development - land sales $ 3,462 $ 460
Operating expenses
  Cost of land sales 2,551 493
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 844 909
  Depreciation 3 1
   Total expenses 3,398 1,403
Operating income 64 (943)
Other expense (515) (581)
Loss before benefit for income taxes (451) (1,524)
Benefit for income taxes (690) (569)
Net income (loss) $ 239 $ (955)

Community Development Land Sales Revenue

Land sales revenue in any one period is affected by the mix of lot sizes and, to a greater extent, the mix between
residential and commercial sales.  Community development land sales revenue increased $535,000 and $3,002,000, or
8% and 653%, to $6,992,000 and $3,462,000 for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 compared to
$6,457,000 and $460,000 for the same periods in 2008, respectively.  The increase is primarily the result of an
increase in the number of lots sold from 69 lots in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 to 86 lots during
2009.   The Company sold 1.85 commercial acres in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to 0.99
commercial acres during 2008.

Residential Land Sales

Residential land sales increased $401,000 and $3,375,000, or 7% and 100%, to $6,398,000 and $3,375,000 for the
nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 compared to $5,997,000 for the same periods in 2008, respectively.
During the three months ended September 30, 2009, 26 town home lots and nine single-family lots were delivered to
Lennar Corporation (“Lennar”) and nine single-family lots were delivered to NVR, Inc. This resulted in the recognition
of revenues of $3,260,000, $80,000 per single-family lot and $70,000 per town home lot, plus $2,600 per lot of water
and sewer fees, road fees and other off-site fees.  There were no lots delivered during the third quarter of 2008.

During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, we also recognized $41,000 and $3,000, respectively, of
additional revenue for lots that were previously sold to Lennar.  During the same periods in 2008, we recognized
$424,000 and $211,000, respectively, of additional revenue based on the final settlement price of the homes as
provided by our agreement with Lennar.

Commercial Land Sales

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, commercial land sales increased $143,000, or 40% to $593,000 as
compared to $362,000 for the same period in 2008.    For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, we sold 0.99
commercial acres in St. Charles compared to 1.89 commercial acres of land in St. Charles during the same periods of
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2008.  The sale in 2009 was within the Town Center North development.  No commercial land sales were completed
during the three months ended September 30, 2009. For the three months ended September 30, 2008, we sold 0.90
commercial acres in St. Charles for $178,000.

Gross Margin on Land Sales

The gross margin on land sales was 26% and 26% for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009,
respectively, as compared to 19% and (7%), respectively, for the same periods in 2008, respectively.  Our gross
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margins on land sales in the U.S. can fluctuate based on changes in the mix of residential and commercial land
sales.   For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, residential land sales at 31% and 27% margins,
respectively, made up the bulk of revenues.  The gross margin on residential land sales increased as a result of the
increase in the number of lots sold and the increase in minimum sales price.

General, Administrative, Selling and Marketing

The primary component of general, administrative, selling and marketing expenses is the corporate overhead
allocation.  General, administrative, selling and marketing expenses increased $78,000, or 3%, to $2,619,000 during
the nine months ended September 30, 2009 as compared to $2,541,000 for the same period of 2008. General,
administrative, selling and marketing expenses decreased $65,000, or 7%, to $844,000 during the three months ended
September 30, 2009 as compared to $909,000 for the same period of 2008.   Overall, the Company’s general and
administrative expenses decreased.  However, the increase for this segment was due to the methodology by which the
Company allocates general and administrative expenses between segments.  See “Results of Operations – Corporate.”

Puerto Rican Land Development Operations

For the nine months ended

Puerto Rican Land Development Operations:
September
30, 2009

September
30, 2008

Operating revenues
  Homebuilding – home sales $246 $3,476
Operating expenses
  Cost of home sales 217 2,694
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 289 251
  Total expenses 506 2,945
Operating (loss) income (260 ) 531
Other income 484 537
Income before provision for income taxes 224 1,068
Provision for income taxes (124 ) -
Net income $348 $1,068

For the three months
ended

Puerto Rican Land Development Operations:
September
30, 2009

September
30, 2008

Operating revenues
  Homebuilding – home sales $ 246 $ 494
Operating expenses
  Cost of home sales 197 394
  General, administrative, selling and marketing 101 69
  Total expenses 298 463
Operating (loss) income (52) 31
Other income 174 120
Income before benefit for income taxes 122 151
Benefit for income taxes (124) -
Net income $ 246 $ 151

Community Development Land Sales
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Homebuilding

Homebuilding revenues decreased $3,230,000 and $248,000, or 93% and 50%, to $246,000 for the nine and three
months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, compared to $3,476,000 and $494,000 for the same periods in 2008,
respectively. During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009, one unit within the Torres del Escorial,
Inc. project was closed.  For the nine and three months ended September 30, 2008, there were 14 and 2 units sold,
respectively.  The average selling price per unit has remained constant.  As of September 30, 2009, five units within
the Torres del Escorial, Inc. project remain available for sale.

General, Administrative, Selling and Marketing Expenses

The primary component of the general, administrative, selling and marketing expenses is the corporate overhead
allocation.  There were no significant changes in general, administrative, selling and marketing expenses for the nine
and three months ended September 30, 2009 as compared to the same periods in 2008.    See “Results of Operations –
Corporate.”

CORPORATE - Results of Operations:

The Company pools its overhead costs, including accounting, human resources, office management and technology as
well as corporate and other executive office costs, by geographical location as it is more effective for allocating to the
Company’s lines of business.  Corporate costs are allocated to the operating segments quarterly based on a percentage
of management’s estimated usage of time.  The amount of general and administrative expenses allocated to the
Corporate Segment decreased by $143,000, or 5%, to $2,607,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 as
compared to the same period of 2008.  The decrease was driven by efforts to cut general and administrative expenses
as well as certain fluctuations in the amount of costs allocated to the operating segments.  The allocation percentages
fluctuate based on the resources and oversight required to operate that segment.

Total general, administrative, selling and marketing costs decreased $591,000, or 6%, to $8,457,000 for the nine
months ended September 30, 2009 and increased $661,000, or 20%, to $3,554,000 for the three months ended
September 30, 2009 as compared to $8,948,000 and $2,893,000 for the same periods in 2008, respectively.  In the
U.S., these costs increased by approximately $92,000 and $631,000 for the nine and three months, and in Puerto Rico,
these costs decreased $683,000 and increased $130,000 for the nine and three months ended in September 30, 2009,
respectively.

In the U.S., the Company noted significant increases in accruals for share based compensation issued to the Chief
Executive Officer and non-employee Trustees as well as increases in the Board of Trustee and consulting costs related
to the Merger.  These increases were offset in part by the reorganization and costs saving initiatives implemented in
the fourth quarter of 2008.  From the first nine months of 2008 to the first nine months of 2009, there was also a slight
shift in the allocation of corporate expenses with the Land Development segment’s allocation decreasing by 12% and
the Operating Real Estate and Corporate segments increasing by 9% and 3%, respectively.  This shift is primarily
related to the method by which the Company allocates overhead.

The 36% decrease in the Puerto Rican overhead is primarily attributable to a decrease in salaries and benefits as a
result of the reorganization in the fourth quarter of 2008, offset slightly by an increase in legal fees.

INCOME TAXES

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes
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        Due to the potential variability in the anticipated effective tax rate on non-discrete activity and/or discrete taxable
events, the company has computed its intraperiod income tax provision for the discrete taxable events and
non-discrete activity using a discrete period computation.

United States

The United States effective tax rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were 36% and 30%,
respectively.  The United States effective tax rates for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were
22% and 37%, respectively.  The statutory tax rate is 40%.  The difference in the statutory tax rate and the effective
tax rate for the pre-tax loss during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2009 was primarily due
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to accrued taxes and penalties on uncertain tax positions, certain non-deductible compensation expenses and the
change in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance.  The difference in the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate
for the pre-tax loss during the nine and three months ended September 30, 2008 was primarily due to a relatively small
net loss, the related benefit for which was partially offset by accrued taxes and penalties on uncertain tax positions.

Puerto Rico

The effective tax rates on the Puerto Rico source income for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008
were 28% and (71%), respectively. The effective tax rates on the Puerto Rico source income for the three months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were 29% and 21%, respectively.  The statutory tax rate is 29%.   The difference
in the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate for the pre-tax income during the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2009, was primarily due to tax exempt income and the change in the deferred tax asset valuation
allowance offset in part by deferred items for which no current benefit may be recognized.  The difference in the
statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate for the pre-tax loss during the nine and three months ended September 30,
2008, was primarily due to tax exempt income offset in part by the double taxation on the earnings of our
wholly-owned corporate subsidiary, ICP, and deferred items for which no current benefit may be recognized. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Summary of Cash Flows

As of September 30, 2009, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $21,507,000 and restricted cash of
$10,127,000.  Included in the Company’s cash and cash equivalents is $3,908,000 of cash located within multifamily
apartment entities, over which the Company does not have direct control.   ACPT receives surplus cash distributions
as well as management fees from these entities.  As of September 30, 2009, the Company had corporate available
funds of $17,599,000.  The following table sets forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows ($ in thousands):

Nine months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
Operating Activities $ 2,420 $ (6,968)
Investing Activities (12,054) (5,658)
Financing Activities 7,106 7,017
      Net Decrease in Cash $ (2,528) $ (5,609)

Operating Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, operating activities provided $2,420,000 of cash flows compared to
$6,968,000 of cash flows used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2008.  The $9,388,000
increase in cash flows provided by operating activities primarily resulted from a reduction of $9,075,000 in the
amount invested in land development.  From period to period, cash flow from operating activities is also impacted by
changes in our net income, as discussed more fully under "Results of Operations," as well as other changes in our
receivables and payables.

Investing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, net cash used in investing activities was $12,054,000 compared to
$5,658,000 for the same period of 2008.  Cash provided by or used in investing activities generally relates to increases
in our investment portfolio through acquisition, development or construction of rental properties and land held for
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future use, net of returns on our investments.  The $6,396,000 increase in the cash used in investing activities between
periods was primarily the result of an increase in investments in rental projects of $10,205,000 related to the
construction of Gleneagles Apartments, the Company’s $1,500,000 investment in Surrey,
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and additions of other assets and prepayments related to the Gleneagles construction project of $3,105,000 offset by
the net cash provided by the sale of IGP of $9,930,000, net of cash deconsolidated.

Financing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, net cash provided by financing activities was $7,106,000 as compared
to $7,017,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008.  This increase in cash provided by financing activities
was primarily the result of the net differences in the timing of, and increases in, mortgage amounts for properties
refinanced, differences in county bond proceeds, dividends to shareholders and debt curtailment from sales between
the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.  The increase in cash proceeds from debt financing relates to the
construction of Gleneagles as well as the refinancing of the Monserrate Associates apartment property mortgage while
the increase in debt payments relates to the payments against the line of credit.

Liquidity Requirements

Our short-term and long-term liquidity requirements consist primarily of obligations under capital and operating
leases, normal recurring operating expenses, regular debt service requirements, investments in community
development and certain non-recurring expenditures.  The Company has historically met its short-term and long-term
liquidity requirements from cash flow generated from residential and commercial land sales, home sales, property
management fees, rental property revenue, and financings.  However, with the current economic environment, there
are no assurances that future sales will occur or that the Company will have adequate access to credit.

Pursuant to agreements with the Charles County Commissioners, the Company is committed to completing
$13,525,000 of infrastructure projects, all of which are eligible to be funded by County bond proceeds, either through
existing bond receivables or future issuances.  The Company expects to incur $2,525,000 in expenses related to this
development over the next 12 months.  Further, due the Company’s completion of several significant Charles County
Roads Projects, $882,000 of retention and open payables were required to be funded as of September 30, 2009, of
which $411,000 is eligible for bond funding.   These project costs and the difference between the cost of County
projects and any bond proceeds available to fund such costs will be funded out of the Company’s available cash flows.

On July 22, 2008, the Company signed a $5,960,000 construction contract for site development related to the
infrastructure of Hilltop Phase I which will involve the construction of 220 condominium units in Parque
Escorial.  This work is currently in process and as of September 30, 2009, our Puerto Rico planning and development
activities had a remaining commitment of $2,487,000, all of which is expected to be incurred over the next nine
months.  Our $10,000,000 credit facility, which was set to mature on August 31, 2009 and has been extended until
December 31, 2010, will be used to fund these expenditures.  As part of the extension, the Company agreed to reduce
the overall facility limit to $7,500,000 with the available credit to be used to fund remaining Hilltop development,
certain retainage due and up to $500,000 to be used to fund future interest payments due under the facility.  In
addition, the facility now bears interest at Prime plus 1.5% but not less than 5.5%.  The outstanding balance of this
facility on September 30, 2009, was $6,247,000.

In addition to the activity noted above, we may seek additional development loans and permanent mortgages for
continued development and expansion of other parts of St. Charles and Parque Escorial, potential opportunities in
Florida and other potential rental property opportunities.

There has been a current reduction in the demand for residential real estate in the Parque Escorial
markets.  Management has also noted a current reduction in the demand for commercial properties.  Sustained
reductions in demand for our commercial property would adversely impact our cash flows.
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As a result of our existing commitments and the downturn in the residential real estate market, management expects to
continue to use the Company’s resources conservatively for the remainder of 2009.  Anticipated cash flow from
operations, existing loans, refinanced or extended loans, asset sales, and new financing are expected to meet our
financial commitments for the next 12 months.  However, there are no assurances that these funds will be generated.
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The Company will evaluate and determine on a continuing basis, depending upon market conditions and the outcome
of events described under the section titled "Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements," the most efficient
use of the Company's capital, including acquisitions and dispositions, purchasing, refinancing, exchanging or retiring
certain of the Company's outstanding debt obligations, distributions to shareholders and its existing contractual
obligations.

Recourse Debt - U.S. Land Development Operations

Pursuant to an agreement reached between ACPT and the County in 2002, the Company agreed to accelerate the
construction of two major roadway links to the road system.  As part of the agreement, the County agreed to issue
general obligation public improvement bonds (“the Bonds”) to finance $20,000,000 of this construction guaranteed by
letters of credit provided by Lennar as part of a residential lot sales contract for 1,950 lots in Fairway Village.  The
Bonds were issued in three installments with the final $6,000,000 installment issued in March 2006.  The Bonds bear
interest rates ranging from 4% to 8%, for a blended lifetime rate for total Bonds issued to date of 5.1%, and call for
semi-annual interest payments and annual principal payments and mature in 15 years.  Under the terms of bond
repayment agreements between the Company and the County, the Company is obligated to pay interest and principal
on the full amount of the Bonds.  Therefore, the Company recorded the full amount of the debt and a receivable from
the County representing the undisbursed Bond proceeds to be advanced to the Company as major infrastructure
development within the project occurs.  As of December 31, 2008, all of the bond proceeds had been used to fund the
specified development.  As part of the agreement, the Company will pay the County a monthly payment equal to
one-sixth of the semi-annual interest payments and one-twelfth of the annual principal payment due on the
Bonds.  The County also requires ACPT to fund an escrow account from lot sales that will be used to repay this
obligation.

In August 2005, the Company signed a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with the Charles County
Commissioners regarding a land donation that is now the site of a minor league baseball stadium and will house a
planned entertainment complex.  Under the terms of the MOU, the Company donated 42 acres of land in St. Charles to
the County on December 31, 2005.  The Company also agreed to expedite off-site utilities, storm-water management
and road construction improvements that will serve the entertainment complex and future portions of St. Charles so
that the improvements will be completed concurrently with the entertainment complex.  The County will be
responsible for infrastructure improvements on the site of the complex.  In return, the County agreed to issue
additional general obligation bonds to finance the infrastructure improvements.  In March 2006, $4,000,000 of bonds
were issued for this project, with an additional $3,000,000 issued in both March 2007 and March 2008 and $2,000,000
in March 2009.  These bonds bear interest rates ranging from 4.9% to 8%, for a blended rate of 5.3%, call for
semi-annual interest payments and annual principal payments, and mature in 15 years.  The terms of the bond
repayment agreement are similar to those noted above.  As of September 30, 2009, $2,525,000 of these bond proceeds
were recorded as a receivable and available to fund the related infrastructure.  In addition, the County agreed to issue
an additional 100 school allocations a year to St. Charles commencing with the issuance of bonds.

In December 2006, the Company reached an agreement with the County whereby the Company receives interest
payments on any undistributed bond proceeds held in escrow by the County.  The agreement covers the period from
July 1, 2005 through the last draw made by the Company.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
the Company recognized $18,000 and $67,000, respectively, of interest income on these escrowed funds.

On April 14, 2006, the Company closed a three-year, $14,000,000 revolving line of credit loan (the “Revolver”) secured
by a first lien deed of trust on property located in St. Charles, Maryland.  During the first quarter of 2009, the
Company renegotiated the terms of the agreement.  The Revolver bears interest at the Prime rate plus 1.25% (4.50% at
September 30, 2009) and was set to mature on April 14, 2009 but has been extended to March 31, 2010.  As of
September 30, 2009, $1,946,000 was outstanding on this facility.  As a result of accelerated curtailments due to

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES TRUST - Form 10-Q

92



increased pace of lot sales, the Revolver is now scheduled to be repaid by December 31, 2009; however, we are
currently working to have the repayment date for a portion of the Revolver extended to the March 31, 2010 extension
date.  Under the terms of the Revolver, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants, including
a minimum net worth covenant.
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On April 2, 2008, the Company secured a two-year, $3,600,000 construction loan for the construction of a commercial
restaurant/office building within the O’Donnell Lake Restaurant Park.  The facility is secured by the land along with
any improvements constructed and bears interest at the Prime Rate (3.25% at September 30, 2009).  At the end of the
two-year construction period, the Company may convert the loan to a five-year permanent loan, amortized over a
30-year period at a fixed interest rate to be determined.  As of September 30, 2009, $3,342,000 was outstanding under
this facility, leaving $258,000 available to fund completion of the building.  However, the lender has requested that
the outstanding balance of the loan be reduced to 80% of the “as-is” value of the building, requesting a reduction of
$782,000 before November 20, 2009.

Recourse Debt - Puerto Rican Land Development Operations

Substantially all of the Company's 490 acres of community development land assets in Parque El Comandante within
the Puerto Rico segment are encumbered by a $10,000,000 recourse revolving line of credit facility.  The
homebuilding and land assets in Parque Escorial are not encumbered by this facility and remain unencumbered as of
September 30, 2009.   This facility matured on August 31, 2009 but the maturity date was extended to December 31,
2010.  As part of the extension, the Company agreed to reduce the overall facility limit to $7,500,000 with the
available credit to be used to fund remaining Hilltop development, certain retainage due and up to $500,000 to be used
to fund future interest payments due under the facility.  In addition, the facility now bears interest at Prime plus 1.5%
but not less than 5.5%.  The outstanding balance of this facility on September 30, 2009, was $6,247,000.  While the
Company will continue to seek refinancing of the line into a construction loan for the development of residential
condominiums, the current state of the credit market may prevent this plan from occurring.  IGP provided a guarantee
on this credit facility; however, the lender’s recourse under this guarantee is limited to the collateral, except in the case
of fraud, intentional misrepresentation, or misappropriation of income associated with the collateral. In the event of
default, the lender’s sole recourse is to foreclose on the property.

Non-Recourse Debt - U.S. Operating Real Estate Operations

As more fully described in Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q, the non-recourse apartment properties' debt is collateralized by apartment projects.  As of September 30, 2009,
approximately 38% of this debt was secured by the Federal Housing Administration ("FHA").  Material changes
during 2008 to the non-recourse debt consist of newly acquired debt and the refinancing of existing debt.  There were
no significant changes to our non-recourse debt obligations for our U.S. Operating Real Estate Operations during the
nine and three months ended September 30, 2009.

Non-Recourse Debt - Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate Operations

As more fully described in Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-Q, the
non-recourse debt is collateralized by the respective multifamily apartment project or commercial building.  

On May 12, 2008, IGP agreed to provide a fixed charge and debt service guarantee related to the Escorial Office
Building I, Inc. (“EOB”) mortgage.  The fixed charge and debt service guarantee requires IGP to contribute capital in
cash in such amounts required to cause EOB to comply with the related financial covenants.  The guarantee will
remain in full force until EOB has complied with the financial covenants for four consecutive quarters.  As a part of
the IGP sale, the guarantee discussed above was assumed by IGP Holdings and was not transferred to IGP.  The
Company does not expect the funding of this guarantee to have a material impact on its liquidity and cash flows.  

On August 31, 2009, the Company completed the sale of its wholly-owned subsidiary, IGP to PBE and its associates,
which was a significant portion of the Company’s Puerto Rican Operating Real Estate segment.  Prior to the sale, IGP
was restructured to include only the Company’s general and limited partnership interests in nine partnerships which
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own twelve properties with 2,653 subsidized apartments in Puerto Rico, as well as the Section 8 affordable housing
management contracts.  Non-recourse debt with a principal balance of $81,051,000 at August 31, 2009 was assumed
by PBE in this transaction.

There were no other significant changes to our non-recourse debt obligations for our Puerto Rican Operating Real
Estate Operations during the three months ended September 30, 2009.
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Purchase Obligations and Other Contractual Obligations

In addition to our contractual obligations described above, we have other purchase obligations consisting primarily of
contractual commitments for normal operating expenses at our apartment properties, recurring corporate expenditures
including employment, consulting and compensation agreements and audit fees, non-recurring corporate expenditures
such as improvements at our investment properties, the construction of the new apartment projects in St. Charles,
costs associated with our land development contracts for the County’s road projects and the development of our land in
U.S. and Puerto Rico.  Our U.S. and Puerto Rico land development and construction contracts are subject to increases
in cost of materials and labor and other project overruns.  Our overall capital requirements will depend upon
acquisition opportunities, the level of improvements on existing properties and the cost of future phases of residential
and commercial land development.  In the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company continued its
development activity within the master planned communities in St. Charles and Puerto Rico.

As of September 30, 2009, as required by the provisions of FASB ASC 740 (FIN 48), the Company has $14,993,000
recorded as FIN 48 accrued income tax liabilities and $5,148,000 as accrued interest on unpaid income tax liabilities
related to uncertain tax positions.  We are unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate amount or timing of settlement of
these liabilities.

In October 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Surrey to contribute $2,000,000 in exchange for a 50%
ownership interest in Surrey.  During the three months ended September 30, 2009, the Company contributed their
final payment in accordance with the agreement.

ITEM
4(T).

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the preparation of this Form 10-Q, as of September 30, 2009, an evaluation was performed under
the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act.  In performing this evaluation, management
reviewed the selection, application and monitoring of our historical accounting policies.  Based on that evaluation, the
CEO and CFO concluded that, as of September 30, 2009, these disclosure controls and procedures were effective and
designed to ensure that the information required to be disclosed in our reports filed with the Securities Exchange
Commission is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s CEO and CFO, evaluated any change in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter covered by this report and
determined that there was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter
covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

PART
II

OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1.LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
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See the information under the heading "Legal Matters" in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements in this Form
10-Q for information regarding legal proceedings, which information is incorporated by reference in this Item 1.
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ITEM
1A.

RISK FACTORS

There has been no material change in the Company’s risk factors from those outlined in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(A) Exhibits

2.1* Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 25, 2009, among FCP Fund I, LLP, FCP/ACPT
Acquisition Company, Inc. and American Community Properties Trust.

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

*Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report of Form 8-K, filed on September 28, 2009.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AMERICAN COMMUNITY PROPERTIES
TRUST
                            (Registrant)

Dated:  November 16, 2009 By:/s/ Stephen Griessel
Stephen Griessel
Chief Executive Officer

Dated:  November 16, 2009 By:/s/ Matthew M.
Martin
Matthew M. Martin
Chief Financial Officer
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